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6,994 7,398 8,249 8,711 9,501
) (702,897)  (743,499)  (829,025)  (875,456)  (954,851)
2,013 1,909 1,979 2,258 2,375
) (202,307)  (191,855)  (198,890)  (226,929)  (238,688)
1,716 1,725 1,751 2,013 2,052
) (172,458)  (173,363)  (175,976)  (202,307)  (206,226)
)
Q) 0.75 0.76 0.77 0.88 0.90
) (75) (76) an (88) (90)
@ 0.75 0.76 0.77 0.88 0.90
) (75) (76) an (88) (90)
( )
) 2,285,461,976 2,285,596,952 2,285,610,264 2,285,610,264 2,285,616, 160
@ 2,285,584,568 2,285,600,364 2,285,610,264 2,285,642,940 2,285,718,894
31
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7,537 8,539 9,522 10,615 11,378
( ) (757,469)  (858,170)  (956,961) (1,066,808) (1,143,489)
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( ) (168,941)  (174,669)  (201,302)  (176,478)  (187,131)
(429) (927) (823) (205) 474)
( ) (-43,115)  (-93,164)  (-82,712)  (-20,603)  (-47,637)
(500) (583) (519) (815) (1,059)
( ) (-50,250)  (-58,592)  (-52,160)  (-81,908)  (-106,430)
751 228 661 736 329
( ) (75,476) (22,914) (66,431) (73,968) (33,065)
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11.7% 12.0% 12.3%
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2016 2015 2014
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2016 31 DWA LLC
16%
2015 100%
225
ST
CloudQuality SaaS
2015
Kallidus 100% Kallidus
Skava Systems Private Limited, India 100% 1P
91
20 Kallidus
2017 12 31 Kallidus
2015 11 16
100%
33
32
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2016
2014 12 31
574,236,166 2014 12
ADS ADS
ADS
2015 30
1,148,472,332 2015 17
ADS ADS
ADS
2016 2015 31 11,323,576 5,667,200
2014 30% 40%
2015 24 2015 40%
50%
2015 22 29.50 0.47
2015 17 636
2015 10 12 10.00 0.15
423
2016 15 14.25 0.22
2016 14.25 0.22 2016 18
2016 20 481
2016 31 2015
2015
2015 24,038,883 17,038,883
RSU 7,000,000
2015
2.15

2012 2016
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2,052 1,716 4.6%
*) 0.90 0.75 4.6%
*) 0.90 0.75 4.6%
194,044 149,994 6.6%

@)
2016
325 2015 221

2016 97.1 2015 97.8%

63/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

oOoOooodn
&)
2016 2015
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62.6% 61.7%
37.4% 38.3%

5.5% 5.5%

6.9% 6.9%
12.4% 12.4%
25.0% 25.9%

5.0% 6.4%
30.0% 32.3%

8.4% 9.2%
21.6% 23.1%

2016 2015
90
2016 2015
2016 2015
9,501 8,711 790 9.1%
2016
IFRS
APAC
GMU
1PS
ECS

2.19
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MFG 11.0% 11.6%
ECS 21.7% 22.5%
RCL 16.4% 16.6%
0 0
HILIEE 13.0% 12.6%
Hi-Tech 7.9% 7.3%
2. 7% 2.4%
2016
6.2% 12.7% 16.1%
2016 2015 2016
9,501 366

9.1% 13.3%
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FS 28.4% 29.6%
MFG 22.6% 22.8%
0 0
ECS 29.6% 30.0%
RCL 27.8% 30.2%
g g
HILIEE 28.0% 28.1%
Hi-Tech 26.5% 26.7%
15.4% 1.2%

RCL
2016 2015

2016 2015
53.2% 51.2%
46.8% 48.8%

2016 2015

2016 2015
24.7% 24 1%
75.3% 75.9%

2016 96.9% 96.8%
2016
3.1% 3.2%

2016 2015
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2016 2015
2.19.2
2016 2015
26.2% 27.9%
27.1% 26.8%
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2016 IT 14.5% 2016
IT 16.8% 13.6% 2016 IT
7.2% 4.0%

2016 4.7%
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2016 2015
2016 2015
5,950 5,374 576 10.7%
62.6% 61.7%
2016 2015
4,627 4,299 328
(
2.3 ) 23 1 (18)
222 175 47
250 219 31
537 354 183
111 139 (28)
81 31 50
37 35 2
27 34 Q)
1 6 (5)
28 27 1
6 14 (8)
5,950 5,374 576
2016 2015
2015 53.4% 2016 54..4%
2016 2015
9.0% 6.6%
IT 2016
2015 12

69/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

2016 2015
2016 2015
3,551 3,337 214 6.4%
37.4% 38.3%
2016
2016 2015
2016 2015
522 480 42 8.7
5.5% 5.5
2016 2015
403 389 14
54 43 11
44 26 18
7 6 1
7 3 4
3 4 )
4 9 5)
522 480 42
2016
2016

2015
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2016 2015
2016 2015
654 599 55 9.2%
6.9% 6.9%
2016 2015
206 174 32
107 65 42
131 97 34
33 36 3)
38 44 (6)
4 35 6
17 21 4)
11 9 2
9 9 -
') 29 (36)
CSR 33 42 )
35 38 3)
654 599 55
2016 2015
2016
2015
2016 2015
2016 2015
2,375 2,258 117 5. 2%
25.0% 25. 9%
2016 2015
0.9%
2016 2015

2016 2015
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476 560 (84) (15.0%)
2016 385
27
21 2016
2015
2015 430
43 85
BPO EdgeVerve Skava
FEMA

EEFC
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2016 2015
2016 2015
69. 9% 68.9%
6.6% 5. 9%
9.3% 10.2%
6.9% 7.6%
7.3% 7.4%
2016 2015
2016 2015
65.69 61.18 (7.4%)
98.88 98.37 (0.5%)
72.51 77.06 5.9%
48.27 53.11 9.1%
2016 2015
@
62.50 59.92
92.47 99.77
67.19 82.69
47.54 55.30
V)
66.26 62.50
95.47 92.47
75.40 67.19
50.98 47.54
(b)/
@
(6.0)% (4.3)%
(3.2)% 7.3%
(12.2)% 18.7%
(7.2)% 14.0%
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2016 2015
2016 ( ) 2015 ( )
1.51 1.61 6.2%
1.10 1.26 12.7%
0.73 0.87 16.1%
2016 ( ) 2015 ( )
@
1.48 1.67
1.08 1.38
0.76 0.92
®)
1.44 1.48
1.14 1.08
0.77 0.76
)/
@
2.7% 11.4%
(5.6)% 21.7%
(1.3)% 17.4%
2016 2015
0.50% 0.52%
@
2016 2015
85 21
IAS 39
2.19.2
STP

2005
SEZ
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2005
50%
50%
2016 2015
268 273
2016 2015
0.12
2.12
2.16
2016 2015
2016 2015
799 805 (®) (0.8%)
28.0% 28.6%
2015 28.6% 2016 28..0%
2015 2016 28.0%
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2016 2015
2016 2015
2,052 2,013 39 1.9%
21.6% 23.1%
2016 0.9%
2015 2016
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31 2015 31
142 131
143 134
1 3
2.11.1
®
1993 4.4 1994
7.7
1999 11 ADS 70.4
2016 31 2015 31 5,804 5,731
2016 31 4,935
11 2015 31 4,859
140
IT
2016 31 2015 31 74
58
2016 2015
2016 2015

1,862 1,756
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(474) (205)
(1,059) (815)
2016 2015 225 240
12 2016 2015 31 18.0%
17.8% 2016 2015 31 12
66 65
2016 2011 138 2015
2010 286
2.16
2016 31 2017 15
2.11.1
2016 2015 117
206 2016 2015
413 367
2016 3,676 22
12 46
3,795
2015 3,901 22
4,098 25 135
2012 10 22
AG 100% 219
112
2016
2015 100%
225
2015 DWA LLC 20% 15
DWA DWA LLC
2016 31
DWA LLC 16%
2015
Kallidus 100% Kallidus
Skava Systems Private Limited, India 100% 91
20 Kallidus

2017 12 31 Kallidus
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2015 11 16
LLC 100% 33
32
2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 2016 12
31 2016
500
% 10% 2016 2015 31 50
40
2016 31
31 12
2017 46
2018 4
50
2016 1,059
2015
815
2015 40% 50% 2016
15 14.25 0.22 2016
14.25 0.22 2016 18
2016 20 481
2016 31 224 2015 31 252 2016
31 181 2015 31 182
43 2015 31 70
2016 31

*

78/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

@

2016 2015
69.9% 68.9%
6.6% 5.9% 9.3% 10.2% 6.9% 7.6%

2016 31 510 100 65 55 25
125 2015 31
716 67 73 98 12 25
12

@)

®)
IFRS

2014 IFRS IAS 39
IFRS IAS 39

IFRS

IFRS IAS 39
12

IFRS 2018 2016
IFRS

IFRS 15
2014 1ASB IFRS 15

IFRS 15 2017 2015
IASB IFRS 15 IFRS 15 2017 2018

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

2016 13 IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
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IFRS 16

©)

IFRS

2019

IFRS

12
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IFRS 16 IAS 17
IFRS 15
IFRS 16
IFRS



18

IAS 18

IAS 18

ATS

IAS 18
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IFRS

IFRS

Q)

(®)
2016 31

255 56 82 50 67
411 379 26 5 1

82/303



443
257

22

46

52

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

137
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2016

2015

85

4.6

10,000
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( (
) )
- - 23,958
J.P_Nagar - - 16,553
Sarakki
3,782,492 22,578 3,505,446
- - 152,896
- - 44,083
SY No 66
- - 217,801
44 SY No 5,11 15(p)
- - 43,647
20 SY No 43(p)
158,100 1,175 - -
- - 14,272,751
- - 374,313
225,245 3,264 - -
120,906 1,408 - -
170,724 1,654 - -
JPIT
399,080 2,081 90,170
220,334 2,089 131,552
EC53
- - 437,344
EC53
394,500 3,930 - -
879,721 3,974 1,999,455
325,689 2,194 2,218,040
Goudakasipur Arisol
1,135,580 6,079 1,316,388
508,300 3,490 578,043
Sholinganal lur
3,637,108 20,168 5,617,084
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- - 16,610
- BPO 131,128 1,612 - -
1,873,209 10,266 2,194,997
3,051,680 15,719 19,615,145
Pocharam
204,000 1,268 119,790
Pajeeru 1,741,636 5,604 15,156,794
Kairangala
Kairangala - - 258,747
11,564,877 15,576 12,652,487
- - 2,047,346
- - 10,803
- - 460,083
Hinjewadi 589,647 3,771 1,089,004
Hinjewadi 6,123,575 33,084 4,987,787
Attipura 1,989,655 7,070 2,178,009
Pallipuram - - 2,171,039
M 778,245 6,908 - -
- - 6,452,568
- Dahegaon Villege - - 6,193,211
- Tikgarita Badshah - - 5,666,307
Badangarda
- Gokul - - 1,875,265
- A-1 A-6 85 - - 1,201,346
SAS Nagar IT 1-3 - - 2,178,009
- - 9,360
1@ - - 657,403
254,278 2,021 - -
186,814 2,149 - -
149,974 2,365 - -
224,643 2,597 - -
@
@
1,050,000 4,500
170 2017 31
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2016 31 224
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¢H)
2016 31
2,400,000, 000 2,296,944 ,664 103,085,336 @
2016 31
2,296,944 ,664 ADS
(1)2016 31 2015
2015
24,038,883 17,038,883  RSU
7,000,000
2015
2016 14
7,898 2015 1,857,820  RSU
RSU
RSU 1,515,135
ADR

@
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(©))
2011 31 574,151,559 2,870,757,795
2011 78,442 392,210 @
2012 31
2012 31 574,230,001 2,871,150,005
2012 6,165 30,825 0}
2013 31
2013 31 574,236,166 2,871,180,830
2014 31 574,236,166 2,871,180,830
2014 12 574,236,166 2,871,180,830 ®)
2015 31 1,148,472,332 5,742,361,660
2015 30 1,148,472,332 5,742,361,660 )
2016 31 2,296,944,664 11,484,723,320
(17,342 )
(1)2011 2012 31
(2)2012 2013 31
®) 2014 12 31
574,236,166 2.12
) 2015 30
1,148,472,332 2.12
2.15
®
2016 31
% %
580,869 99.00 547,484,141 23.84
5,872 1.00 1,749,460,523 76.16
586,741 100.00 2,296,944,664 100.00
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®
2016 31
(%)
132,274,300 5.76
55,104,357 2.40
1142 DB
54,682,320 2.38
J.P.
N.A.
49,178,500 2.14
13
855
46,411,362 2.02
J.P.
N.A.
HDFC BKC 32,907,798 1.43
- HDFC C-54 C-55
FIFC 11
N.A.
31,799,128 1.38
35
21
575
ICICI 29,785,427 1.30
1142 DB
29,066,065 1.27
1142 DB
22,812,976 0.99
APG
J.P.
N_A.
484,022,233 21.07
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2015 40% 50%
2016 2015 0.47 2015
2016 0.15 2015 2014
1.21 0.82 ADS ADS
ADS
ADS
2008
ADS
) €
2016 - 10.00 0.15 0.15
2016 -2015 @ 29.50 0.47 0.47
2015 @ 73.00 1.21 1.21
o014 @ 47.00 0.82 0.82
(€]
(2) 2015
3)
) 2016 15 2017 14.25 0.22

2016 18 592
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BSE) NSE (
ADS
INFY ADS ADS 1999
11 2012 12 11
ADS 2012 12 12 INFY
2013 20 ADS
1999 10
ADS
2016 31 2,296,944,664 385,317,937ADS  1ADS
ADR 30,199 2016 31
586,741
ADS
ADS
ADS
@

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

31 31 31 31 31
826.50 751.19 958.93 1,167.60 1,234.65
1,248 1,134 1,448 1,763 1,864
547.42 531.25 553.08 723.50 932.55
827 802 835 1,092 1,408
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
31 31 31 31 31
826.55 751.09 957.98 1,168.00 1,237.00
1,248 1,134 1,447 1,764 1,868
545.85 530.95 553.00 720.00 932.65
824 802 835 1,087 1,408
™
ADS
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
31 31 31 31 31
18.35 14.40 15.76 18.64 19.46
1,844 1,447 1,584 1,873 1,956
11.76 9.55 9.81 12.52 15.26
1,182 960 986 1,258 1,534
@) ADS 2012 12 11 2012 12 12
@
2015 10 2015 11 2015 12 2016 2016 2016
1,219.00 1,155.60 1,110.00 1,169.70 1,193.60 1,234.65
1,841 1,745 1,676 1,766 1,802 1,864
1,087.10 1,012.25 1,023.50 1,031.85 1,067.00 1,089.00
1,642 1,528 1,545 1,558 1,611 1,644
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2015 10 2015 11 2015 12 2016 2016 2016
1,219.80 1,157.60 1,110.00 1,170.00 1,194.95 1,237.00
1,842 1,748 1,676 1,767 1,804 1,868
1,085.20 1,011.25 1,022.55 1,030.85 1,067.00 1,094.80
1,639 1,527 1,544 1,557 1,611 1,653

ADS
2015 10 2015 11 2015 12 2016 2016 2016
19.46 18.61 17.06 18.07 17.90 19.32
1,956 1,870 1,715 1,816 1,799 1,942
17.24 15.72 15.87 15.76 15.91 17.12
1,733 1,580 1,595 1,584 1,599 1,721
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2016 26 27%
2016 26
2016
26
€y
41,466
1967 13
CSR
2014 IT
IT
SAP SE
U.B. 555,520
1961 12 12
BPO
AG 28
1986
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M.D. 9,256
1962 11
IT
24 15
2008 2013
1991 1999 ICICI

PGDM

D.
1961
25
JDA
S.A.
1BM
2014 800
1953 23
Biocon Limited
CSR
TIME
100
2012
CEO 10
Biocon
1973
1975

96/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

oooooog
1963 12 2011
Conquering the Chaos: Win in India, Win
Everywhere
50
S.
2006
1956
. 248
1948 2011
CSR
1976
1983 1993
1998
2008
Jehangir Ghandy

97/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

W. 2014
12
1952 16
16
csLI
Educom Medal
1983
Journal of Symbolic Logic
2015
1963 11
CRISIL
CNBC TV1i8 2012
2014

2013-14
SEBI

NASSCOM

(11M-A)
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2016 2,897
27
1962 13
1990
NYSE IFN 15
NYSE GRR
CIBC
Jp
CFA CFA
(1)2016 26

2016 1,395,402
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2016
/
® 906,923 M@ 458 797 - 51,198
U.B. 135,313 849,677 387,287 24,269
K.V O - - 58,709 -
- - 157,500 -
5. ©) - - 300,875 -
R (®) - - 277,111 -
- - 131,250 -
M. ™ - - 102,441 -
- - 179,407 -
W. - - 158,000 -
®) . - 30,109 -
© 84,937 639,393 2,698,415 15,102
M.D. (10) 260,865 265,252 - 13,024
D. 470,510 658,619 - 20,439
(1) 2016 4.33 2014 30
4.18
2016 15 2016
4.33
&) 2015 22 2015 2.1
(3) 2016 RSU
(4) 2015
(5) 2006 14 2016 31 2016
14
(6) 2015
(7) 2015 11 23
(8) 2016 14 2016 31
(9) 2015 10 12 2.18

(10) 2015 10 12

2015
27,067 RSU 108,268 RSU RSU
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2016

124,061 RSU RSU

RSU
2.15
2016 31 2016 14
RSU 2016
RSU
RSU
2016
2016 10,824 2016 31

221,505
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(€Y)

18 2016 31
303A.02

60
70
2016 31

CSR CSR
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2016

2016

©

2016

2016

CSR

31

2016

31

Q)

©)

31

@
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R.
W.
2016
2016 31
S.
W.
2016
CSR
2016 31 CSR
R.
CSR CSR
CSR CSR
CSR
CSR 2016
2016 31 CSR
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2016

U.B.

106/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

@)
2016 2015
2016 2015
@) 1.4 1.2
®) - 0.5
©) 0.3 0.1
1.7 1.8
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€))

(b)

©

(D

SEC

59

2016 18

IFRS

131

KPMG

32
193

2016

100.50

(b)
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38

12
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2016 31 2015 31

2.1 4,935 4,859
2.2 11 140
1,710 1,554
457 455
2.4 672 527
2.7 17 16
7,802 7,551
2.5 1,589 1,460
2.6 568 495
2.6 149 102
16 15
2.2 273 215
2.16 81 85
2.16 789 654
2.4 111 38
3,576 3,064
11,378 10,615
58 22
2.7 1 -
2.16 515 451
4 4
201 168
202 171
2.8 7 77
2.9 940 927
1,998 1,820
2.16 39 25
2.9 17 8

2,054 1,853
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0.16 2016 199 109
31 2015 31
2,400,000, 000
1,200,000,000
2,285,621,088 1,142,805,132
11,323,576 5,667,200
570 659
11,083 10,090
(2,528) (2,096)
9,324 8,762
9,324 8,762
11,378 10,615

2.5 2.8 2.16
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2016 31 2015 31

2.1 495,968 488,330
2.2 1,106 14,070
171,855 156,177
45,929 45,728
2.4 67,536 52,964
2.7 1,709 1,608
784,101 758,876
2.5 159,695 146,730
2.6 57,084 49,748
2.6 14,975 10,251
1,608 1,508
2.2 27,437 21,608
2.16 8,141 8,543
2.16 79,295 65,727
2.4 11,156 3,819
359,388 307,932
1,143,489 1,066,808
5,829 2,211
2.7 101 -
2.16 51,758 45,326
402 402
20,201 16,884
20,301 17,186
2.8 7,739 7,739
2.9 94,470 93,164
200,799 182,910
2.16 3,920 2,513
2.9 1,709 804

206,427 186,227
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2016 20,000 10,955
31 2015 31
2,400,000,000
1,200,000,000
2,285,621,088 1,142,805,132
11,323,576 5,667,200
57,285 66,230
1,113,842 1,014,045
(254,064) (210,648)
937,062 880,581
937,062 880,581
1,143,489 1,066,808

2.5 2.8 2.16

112/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

Ogoooood
2016 2015 2014

9,501 8,711 8,249

5,950 5,374 5,292

3,551 3,337 2,957

522 480 431

654 599 547

1,176 1,079 978

2,375 2,258 1,979

2.13 476 560 440

2,851 2,818 2,419

2.16 799 805 668

2,052 2,013 1,751

2.11 ® ®) -
2.16

2.2 6 14 an
2.16

(436) (375) (616)

432) (369) (633)

1,620 1,644 1,118

2,052 2,013 1,751

2,052 2,013 1,751

1,620 1,644 1,118

1,620 1,644 1,118

0.90 0.88 0.77

0.90 0.88 0.77
2.17

2,285,616,160 2,285,610,264 2,285,610,264
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2,285,718,894 2,285,642,940 2,285,610,264
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2016 2015 2014

954,851 875,456 829,025

597,975 540,087 531,846

356,876 335,369 297,179

52,461 48,240 43,316

65,727 60,200 54,974

118,188 108,440 98,289

238,688 226,929 198,890

2.13 47,838 56,280 44,220

286,526 283,209 243,110

2.16 80,300 80,903 67,134

206,226 202,307 175,976

2.11 (201) (804) -
2.16

2.2 603 1,407 (1,709)
2.16

(43,818) (37,688) (61,908)

(43,416) (37,085) (63,617)

162,810 165,222 112,359

206,226 202,307 175,976

206,226 202,307 175,976

162,810 165,222 112,359

162,810 165,222 112,359

90 88 77

90 88 77
2.17

2,285,616,160 2,285,610,264 2,285,610,264

115/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

2,285,718,894 2,285,642,940 2,285,610,264
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®
2013 571,402,566 64 704 7,666 - (1,103) 7,331
2014 31
2.11 2.16
( ) - - - (519) - - (519)
1AS 19 - - - 6) - 9 3
- - - - - @ @
2.2 2.16
- - - 1,751 - - 1,751
- _ - - - (616) (616)
2014 31 571,402,566 64 704 8,892 - (€,727) 7,933
2015 31
@ 2.12 571,402,566 45 - - - - 45
W 5 - - (45) - - - (45)
- - - - - ® ©)
2.11 2.16
( ) - - - (815) - - (815)
- - - - - 14 14
2.2 2.16
- - - 2,013 - - 2,013
_ _ - - - (375) (375)
2015 31 1,142,805,132 109 659 10,090 - (2,096) 8,762
2016 31
10,824 - - - - - -
W 5 1,142,805,132 9 - - - - 90
@, - - (90) - - - (90)
- - - (89) 89 - -
- - - 89 (89) - -
2.15 - - 1 - - - 1
- - - - - @ @
2.11 2.16
( ) - - - (1,059) - - (1,059)
- - - - - 6 6
2.2 2.16
- - - 2,052 - - 2,052
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- _ - - - (436) (436)
2016 2 (€)) 2,285,621,088 199 570 11,083 - (2,528) 9,324
€Y
@) 2016 31 2015 31 2014 31 2013
11,323,576 5,667,200 2,833,600 2,833,600
(3) 2016 31
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@
2013 571,402,566 6,432 70,752 770,433 - (110,852) 736,766
2014 31
2.11 2.16
( ) - - - (52,160) - - (52,160)
1AS 19 - - - (603) - 905 302
- - - - - (1,709) (1,709)
2.2 2.16
- - - 175,976 - - 175,976
- - - - - (61,908)  (61,908)
2014 31 571,402,566 6,432 70,752 893,646 - (173,564) 797,267
2015 31
o, 571,402,566 4,523 - - - - 4,523
™ o - - (4,523) - - - (4,523)
_ 3 B } - (804) (804)
2.11 2.16
( ) . . _ (81,908) . - (81,908)
B} N B} B, . 1,407 1,407
2.2 2.16
- - - 202,307 - . 202,307
. . . . - (37,688)  (37,688)
2015 31 1,142,805,132 10,955 66,230 1,014,045 - (210,648) 880,581
2016 31
10,824 . . . . . .
o, 1,142,805,132 9,045 . . . . 9,045
® o - - (9,045) - - - (9,045)
- - - (8,945) 8,945 - -
- - - 8,045  (8,945) - -
2.15 - - 101 - - - 101
- - - - - (201) (201)
2.11 2.16
( ) - - - (106,430) - - (106,430)
- - - - - 603 603
2.2 2.16
- - - 206,226 - - 206,226
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- _ - - - (43,818) (43,818)

2016 31 ®) 2,285,621,088 20,000 57,285 1,113,842 - (254,064) 937,062
@
@ 2016 31 2015 31 2014 31 2013
11,323,576 5,667,200 2,833,600 2,833,600
(3) 2016 31
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2016 2015 2014
2,052 2,013 1,751
2.5 2.6 222 175 226
@7 (48) (44)
2.16 799 805 668
10 15 8
2.3 23 41 31
@ 29 23
26 12 3
(225) (240) (232)
(220) (81) (60)
27 (6) (62)
37 3) 5
- 0 1
43 45 @7
48 103 350
2,754 2,858 2,641
2.16 (892) (1,102) (638)
1,862 1,756 2,003
2.5 2.9 (413) (367) (451)
— (15) -
117) (206) -
(11) @ ®
(22) (22) @7
26 54 33
(46) - (154)
- - (210)
- 135 74
(3,676) (3,901) (3,731)
3,795 4,098 3,681
- ®) (24)

5 25 -
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(12) - -
(€)) - -
474) (205) (823)
(1,059) (815) (519)
(1,059) (815) (519)
(253) (208) (351)
329 736 661
2.1 4,859 4,331 4,021
2.1 4,935 4,859 4,331

2.1 74 58 53
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2016 2015 2014

206,226 202,307 175,976

2.5 2.6 22,311 17,588 22,713
(2,714) (4,824) (4,422)

2.16 80,300 80,903 67,134
1,005 1,508 804

2.3 2,312 4,121 3,116
(704) 2,915 2,312

2,613 1,206 302

(22,613)  (24,120)  (23,316)

(22,110) (8,141) (6,030)

(2,714) (603) (6,231)

3,719 (302) 503

- (201) 101

4,322 4,523 (2,714)

4,824 10,352 35,175

276,777 287,229 265,421

2.16 (89,646)  (110,751)  (64,119)
187,131 176,478 201,302

2.5 2.9 (41,507)  (36,884)  (45,326)
- (1,508) -

(11,759)  (20,703) -

(1,106) (101) (402)

(2,211) (2,211) (3,719)

2,613 5,427 3,317

(4,623) - (15,477)

- - (21,105)

- 13,568 7,437

(369,438)  (392,051)  (374,966)

381,398 411,849 369,941

- (503) (2,412)

503 2,513 -
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(1,206) - -
(302) - -

(47,637)  (20,603)  (82,712)

(106,430)  (81,908)  (52,160)

(106,430)  (81,908)  (52,160)

(25,427)  (20,904)  (35,276)

33,065 73,968 66,431

2.1 488,330 435,266 404,111
2.1 495,968 488,330 435,266
2.1 7,437 5,829 5,327
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Finacle

NYSE

2016 18

1.2
IFRS

1.3
2.18

1.4
IFRS

1.5

1.5
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IFRS

IAS 18

IAS 18
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IAS 18
ATS
IAS 18
ATS

ATS
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1.7
22 25
( 25 )
1.8
IFRS
IFRS
1.9
1.9.1
BPO EdgeVerve BPO
EdgeVerve Systems Limited
1.9.2

BPO EdgeVerve

128/303



1.9.3

1.9.4

1.10

1.11

1.12
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IFRS
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12

12

(i)

Q)

IAS 39

IAS 39

12
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1.15

Q)

)]

CGU
CGU CGU
CGU CGU
CGU
CGU

CGU CGU CGU
CGU
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CGU

1.16

1.17

1.18

BPO EdgeVerve Skava

Kallidus
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1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23
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1.24

1.25

1.25.1

IFRS
2014

IFRS
12

IFRS 2018
IFRS

IFRS 15
2014

IFRS 15
IASB IFRS 15

IFRS 16
2016 13

IFRS 16

IAS 39

2017

IAS 17

2019

IFRS

1ASB

IFRS 15

12

IFRS

IFRS 15

2017

IFRS 16
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2016
2015
2018
IFRS 15
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31
2016 2015
4,139 4,192
796 667
4,935 4,859
2016 31 2015 31 74 58
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31
2016 2015
ANZ 2 1
1 2
103 115
3 4
WBK S.A. 1 1
3 2
3 1
2 2
1 1
N.A. 11 4
N.A. 1 4
N_A. 10 3
N.A. 11 4
N.A. - 1
N.A. 2 3
N.A. - 1
N.A. - 1
N.A. 1 1
N.A. 1 1
N.A. 9 -
3 3
1 -
9 2
1 -
2 1
4 3
2 -
3 1
1 1
1 -
2 1
- 1
1 3
1 1
26 4
EEFC 1 1
EEFC 5 1
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EEFC 15 1
EEFC 1 1
HSBC 1 1
HSBC - 7
Icicl 11 5
Icicl EEFC 2 2
2 1
1 -
1 -
12 3
- 7
- 7
1 -
1 1
1 11
10 3
3 1
2 2
4 -
2 1
1 -
3 6
1 1
303 236
143 27
- 32
202 239
- 383
11 431
339 501
232 221
19 -
194 204
36 19
- 6
HDFC 400 336
Icicl 634 507
1DBI 287 137
38 12

ING - 16
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0000000
189 104
4 -
81 1
- 14
297 253
3 95
357 9
3 4
191 65
21 168
46 75
109 97
3,836 3,956
HDFC 796 667
796 667

4,935 4,859
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2.2
31
2016 2015
10 135
1 -
1 -
- 5
- 5
11 140
250 216
6 (€H)
256 215
14 -
14 -
3 -
3 -
273 215
284 355
2016 31 2015 31 10

135
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2016 31
2015 31
2015 31
2015 31
2015 31 19
2015 31
2014 31
2.16 )
2016 31 2015 31 257 215
2016 31
15 2015 31
18 2014 31
2.16 )
2.3
McCamish
2010 BPO
McCamish LLC McCamish 100% 37
20
15
2014 31 McCamish
McCamish 100
McCamish
13.9%
50% 100%
2013 31 McCamish
McCamish
McCamish
2014 31

2014 McCamish
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AG AG
2012 10 22
AG 100% 219
112
IFRS 3R 2016 31
2016 2015 2014 23
41 31
2015 100%
225
ST
CloudQuality SaaS
2 - 2
™) 6 - 6
- 39 39
- 3 3
- 13 13
- 4 4
- (16) (16)
8 43 51
174
225
™) 19

225
2015 31
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2015
Kallidus Inc. 100%
Kallidus Skava Systems Private Limited 100%
91 20
IP
™ 6 - 6
- 21 21
- 2 2
- 27 27
- (20) (20)
6 30 36
71
107
™
91
16
107
Kallidus 2017 12 31 Kallidus
Kallidus
14%
2016 31
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LLC
2015 11 16
LLC 100% 33
32
@) 6 - 6
- 4 4
- 4 4
- 18 18
6 26 32
5
37
™
33
4
37
32% 2015
12 31 2016 12 31 2016
IFRS 2016 31
2016 31
EdgeVerve Systems Limited
EdgeVerve
2014 15
EdgeVerve 2014 14

2014
EdgeVerve
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Finacle Edge Services
2015 24
EdgeVerve
EdgeVerve

Edge Services

2015 12 11
129

2014 70 421
Finacle Edge Services
2015
2015
3,222 491 177
EdgeVerve 850,000,000
254,900,000 2,549 389
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2.4

2016 31

2015 31

2 4

1 1

46 35

@ 30 16
106 63

(€Y 272 218
(€Y 7 -
187 176

@ 17 13

4 1

672 527

4 5

12 11

9 9

o 1 4

@ 13 1
(D) 50 -
22 8

111 38

783 565

393 313

@

145/303



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

OooooOodd
2.5
2016 31
2015
250 940 337 535 189 6 2,257
9 68 76 168 40 1 362
- - @ (60) @ @ (64)
(15) (53) (20) (28) (10) @ @127)
2016 31
244 955 392 615 218 4 2,428
2015
®) G317 07) (365) (132) G)  @,027n)
@ (33) (49) &4) 24) €Y (192)
- - 1 36 1 1 39
1 18 12 18 6 - 55
2016 31
®3) (332) (243) (395) (149) GB) (1.125)
2016 31
286
2016 31
241 623 149 220 69 1 1,589
2015
230
2015

247 623 130 170 57 3 1,460
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2015 31
2014
190 839 284 444 170 6 1,933
69 139 69 124 30 1 432
2.3 - - - 2 1 - 3
- - €)) (13) (©) @ (20)
® (38) (13) (22) ® - (9D
2015 31
250 940 337 535 189 6 2,257
2014
- (300) (175) (328) i ) (922)
2.3 - - - (€H) - - €Y
(©) (31) (42) (63) 24) €Y (164)
- - 2 11 3 1 17
- 14 8 16 6 @) 43
2015 31
®) G317) (207) (365) (132) GB) (1,027)
2015 31
230
2015 31
247 623 130 170 57 3 1,460
2014
305
2014

190 539 109 116 53 4 1,316
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2014 31
2013
157 773 231 347 147 5 1,660
48 136 73 125 33 2 417
- - @ ®) - @ Q)
(15) (70) (19) (23) (10) - (137)
2014 31
190 839 284 444 170 6 1,933
2013
- 75) (154) (240) (103) ®) (775)
- (49) (35) (109) 1) - (214)
- - - 4 - 1 5
- 24 14 17 7 - 62
2014 31
- (300) (175) (328) 17 @ (922)
2014 31
305
2014 31
190 539 109 116 53 4 1,316
2013
306
2013
157 498 77 107 44 2 1,101
2014 30 2014
2016 31 2015 31
95 99
2016 31 2015 31 224

252
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2.6

2016 31 2015 31
495 360
( 2.3 - 174
Kall Edug-BSkava; 71 _
( 2.3 5 -
®) (39)
568 495
CGU ceu ccu
2016 31
IFRS
2.19 2016
2016 31

128

64

87

99

119

497

71

568

BPO McCamish
CcGu
BPO Kallidus Skava
CcGu

CGU
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2015 31
2015 31
106
105
51
23
31
58
76
45
495
cou cou
2016 31
Cou
Cou
o
31
2016 2015
8-10 8-10
17-20 17-20
14.2 13.9

(WACC)
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2016 31
2015
72 42 3 2 11 8 5 143
2.3 45 21 - - - 6 4 76
- - - ® - - - ®
- ) - - - - 1 -
2016 31
117 62 3 - 11 14 10 217
2015
(26) ®) ®) @ @ ®) @ (41)
(20) ) - - - @ ©)) (30)
- - - 2 - - - 2
- - - - - 1 - 1
2016 31
(46) © ®) - @ ®) O] (68)
2016 31
71 53 - - 10 9 6 149
2015
46 39 - - 10 3 4 102
3-10 8-10 - - 50 3-10 3-5

1-7 7-9 - - 45 2-9 2-5
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2015 31
2014
64 6 3 2 11 5 1 92
2.3 13 39 - - - 3 4 59
O - - - - - e
®) - - - - - -G
2015 31
72 42 3 2 11 8 5 143
2014
w ® 6 o - ® O &
QI - - O W - ay
- 3 - - - - - 3
2 - - - - - - 2
2015 31
e O e e 0 6 O @
2015 31
46 39 - - 10 3 4 102
2014
43 2 - - 11 1 - 57
3-10 10 3 - 50 2-10 3

2-8 10 - - 46 10 3
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2014 31
2013
62 6 4 2 11 5 2 92
2 - o - - - o -
2014 31
64 6 3 2 11 5 1 92
2013
w 6 o O - O - @
O I AR €Y - SN ¢ B ) N ¢k
- 2 - - - @ - 1
2014 31
RO O MR - @ O &
2014 31
43 2 - - 11 1 - 57
2013
48 1 2 - 11 4 2 68
2-10 5 3 - 50 2 -
1-9 3 1 - 47 1 -
2016 31 2015 31 2014 31

108 110 147
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2.7

2016 31

2.1 4,935 - - - - 4,935

2.2
- - - 284 - 284

1,710 - - - - 1,710
457 - - - - 457

( 2.4 ) 393 - - - - 393

7,495 17 - 284 - 7,796

- - - - 202 202

( 29 ) - 17 - - 737 754

- 18 - - 1,001 1,019
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2015 31

2.1 4,859 - - - 4,859
2.2

- - 355 - 355

1,554 - - - 1,554

455 - - - 455

( 2.4 ) 313 - - - 313

- 16 - - 16

7,181 16 355 - 7,552

- - - 22 22

. - - 4 4

- - - 171 171

( 2.9 ) - - - 782 782

979 979
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2016 31
2016
31
( 2.2 ) 10 10 - -
2.2 ) 257 57 200 -
( 2.2 ) 14 - - 14
( 2.2 3 - - 3
17 - 17 -
1 - 1 -
( 2.9 )™ 17 - - 17
) 20 13.7%
2016 31 50
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2015 31

2015

31
( 2.2 ) 135 135 - -

2.2

) 5 - 5 -
2.2 215 97 118 -
16 - 16 -
2016 2015 2014
( 2.13 ) 385 430 356
2.13 ) 27 43 37
412 473 393
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( )

2016 31 2015 31
510 716
100 67
65 73
55 98
- 12
- 25
25 -
125 -

2016 31 2015 31
2014 31 40
12

2016 31 2015 31
238 237
516 605
157 155

911 997
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911 997
17 16
1 -
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2016 31
170 25 30 26 91 342
1,141 193 109 90 105 1,638
282 56 29 17 38 422
14 6 4 2 12 38
19 (11) (11) @ (11) (53)
(©) - - - @ (©))
(119) (23) (18) 5) (33) (198)
87 (12) @ (25) (19) (150)
(159) (20) ®) ®) (32) (222)
1,220 214 131 98 150 1,813

2015 31
159 9 7 19 66 260
1,075 166 87 75 96 1,499
274 53 20 16 40 403
13 5 3 1 10 32
® @ - - (10) (21)
(©)) - - - @ (©))
(120) (23) (13) ) (26) (186)
(70) ©)) (6) (21) an (123)
(122) (19) 4) ®) (101) (249)
1,197 180 94 83 57 1,611

2016 2015 2014 31

0.50% 0.52% 0.48%
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2016 31 2015 31 1,710 1,554
457 455
( )
31
2016 2015 2014
3.6 3.3 3.8
13.8 13.5 14.4
2016 31 2015 31
1,258 1,174
2016 31 2015 31
30 60
2016 31 2015 31 42 55
2016 31 2015 31

30 314 263

31 -60 71 55

61 -90 46 14

90 21 48

452 380
2016 31 2015 2014

31 29 23
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31
2016 2015 2014
59 36 17
®) ) -
@ 29 23
(5) ) O
44 59 36
2016 31 5,804 4,935
11 2015 31 5,731
4,859 140
2016 31 2015 31 202 17
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31
1-2 2-4 4-7
58 - - - 58
4 - - - 4
(
2.9 ) 732 4 1 - 737
2.9 13 7 - - 20
2015 31
1-2 2-4 4-7
22 - - - 22
4 - - - 4
(
2.9 ) 704 - - - 704
2.9 84 - - - 84
2016 31 2015 31
2016

31 2015 31
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2016 31 2015 31
18 0 17 '6))
') 1 @ 1
17 [¢)) 16 -
2.8
2016 31 2015 31
77 77
77 77
31
2016
77
1
16
an
77
2016 31 2015 31
2.16 42 277 42

261
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2.9

2016

31

2015 31

342 337
331 318

@ 196 145

12 8

25 28

- 1

- 78

12 .

22 12

940 927

5 -

5 -

@ 7 8

17 8

957 935

754 782

2.3 20 84

@
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2.10

31
2016 2015 2014

5,236 4,862 4,746

( 2.3 ) 23 41 31

( 2.5 2.6 ) 222 175 226

345 297 280

118 68 83

17 21 17

113 139 129

81 31 32

68 82 72

537 354 322

33 36 36

160 124 95

1 2 2

44 26 22

1 6 8

( 2.7 ) ) 29 23

( 2.14 ) 55 50 53

9 9 9

33 42 _

( 2.20 ) 37 59 84

7,126 6,453 6,270
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2016

31

2015

31

2016 31
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2015 31

131 118
18 16

9 10

3 11
(11) (19)
(®) ®)
142 131
134 120
10 11

1 1

17 26
(11) (19)
(®) ®)
143 134
1 3

1 4

€))
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2016 2015 2014 31
31
2016 2015 2014
18 16 16
@ @ -
17 15 16
2016 2015 2014
31
2016 2015 2014
3 11 1
@ @ @
2 10 -
31
2016 2015 2014
- - 3
- 9 )
- 9 ®
31
2016 2015 2014
15 13 14
1 1 1
1 1 1

17 15 16
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2016 31 2015 31
2016 31 2015 31
7.8% 7.8%
8.0% 8.0%
2016 2015 2014 31
31
2016 2015 2014
7.8% 9.2% 8.0%
8.0% 8.0% 7.3%
6.4 6.4 9
BPO EdgeVerve BPO
EdgeVerve Systems Limited
2016 31 2015 31
2016 2015 2014 31 11 12
2016 31
2016 31

2017 15
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22
22
24
25
27
10 137
2.11.2
2016 2015 2014 31 36 35 33
31
2016 2015 2014

32 31 30

3 3 2

1 1 1

36 35 33

2.11.3
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31 2015 31
575 466
575 466
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2016 31 2015 31
7.8% 7.8%
7 7
8.8% 8.8%
8.6% 8.6%
2016 2015 2014 31 63 56 48
31
2016 2015 2014
56 50 43
5 4 3
2 2 2
63 56 48
2.11.4
31
2016 2015 2014
™ 5,120 4,756 4,649
46 43 38
70 63 59
5,236 4,862 4,746

(*)2016 2015 31
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31
2016 2015 2014
4,627 4,299 4,222
403 389 356
206 174 168

5,236 4,862 4,746

2.12
2014 12 31
574,236,166 2015 30
1,148,472,332
2015 17 ADS
ADS ADS ADS
2016 2015 31 11,323,576 5,667,200
10 AAQL (i)
10 AAQQ)
2016 31
2.12.1
ADS
ADS

2.12.2
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2015
2016 31
0.47 2015 17
2015 2014 31
73.00
2016 15
2016 18
2.12.3
2.12.4

40%

0.82
14.25
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29.50
10 0.15 2016

1.21
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2.13
31
2016 2015 2014
385 430 356
4 85 (40)
21 @ 78
27 43 37
39 9 9
476 560 440
2.14
2016 2015 2014 31 55
50 53
2016 31 2015 31
56 27
132 63
67 27
10
2.15 ( ESOP )
2015 2015
SEBI 2014
SEBI 1999 SEBI ESOP 2011
SEBI
2015
2015 2016 31
2015
2015 24,038,883 2011
11,223,576
17,038,883 7,000,000
2015
2011 2011
RSU 2011 RSU
2011 30 2011 2011 10 17
11,334,400
10 2015

31
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108,268 RSU 2015 22
124,061  RSU RSU
RSU
2016 31
100,000
11,223,576 2011
10,824 100,000 2015
2016 14 2015 22
RSU
RSU 2016 31
RSU
2016 31 2011
2016 31
( ) ( )
2011
Q) 108,268 0.08
124,061 0.08
Q) 10,824 0.08
221,505 0.08
Q) 2.12

2011 16
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2015 31 2011
2015 31
( ) ( )
2011
Q) 108,268 0.08
108,268 0.08
Q) 2.12
2016 31 2015 31 2011 RSU
1.98 2.39
RSU RSU RSU
RSU RSU
RSU
2016 2015
2015 22 2014 21
*) 16 58
0.08 0.08
% 28-36 30-37
1-4 1-4
% 2.43 1.84
% 7-8 8-9
™) 15 55
(*)2015

2016 2015 31
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31
2016 2015 2014

642 511 585

167 282 124

809 793 709

3 6 (29)

(13) 6 (12)

(10) 12 41)

799 805 668
2016 2015 2014 31 47 26
2014 2015 31 29

2.5
2016 2015 2014
2016 2015 2014
1961

2.19.2

2.19.2
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31
2016 2015 2014
2,851 2,818 2,419
34.61% 33.99% 33.99%
987 958 822
(268) (273) (273)
109 134 99
“n (26) )
(13) (15) (13)
9 7 11
1 (6) 1
30 34 47
- 1 1
- - ®
® ©) (15)
799 805 668
2016 2015 2014 31 34.61% 33.99%
33.99% 2015 34.61%
2016 2015 31 2011 11 23 DSIR
2014
200%
STP
2005 SEZ
2005
50%
50% 2.12
2016 2015 2014
268 273 273
2016 2015 2014 31 0.12
2.12
15% Branch Profit Tax 2016 31
771 2016 31
51
2016 31 2015 31 745 615

2016 31 2015 31
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2016 31 2015 31
789 654
(515) (451)
274 203
2016 2015 2014
31
2016 2015 2014
203 (111) (44)
(12) 3 4
892 1,102 638
( 2.16 ) (809) (793) (709)
- 2 -
274 203 (111)
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2016 31 2015 31

27 38

8 8

13 17

59 48

10 8

12 12

8 5

137 136

1) (1)

(38) (25)

€y -

®) -

(95) (76)

81 85

(39) (25)

12 12
2016 31 2015 31

12 61 56
12 76 80
137 136

12 (68) 9
12 27 an
(95) (76)
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2016 2015 2014 31
31
2016 2015 2014
60 99 71
2.3
(20) (16) -
) © (15)
/
2.16 10 12) 1
@ O] 2
42 60 99
2016
2015
2014
2007 MAT
2011 2011
BPO
2016 31 2015 31
2016 31 662
4,383
2015 31 571
3,568
662 4,383 624 4,135
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 185 1,224
2016 31
2011 138 913
2007 2008 2009 10 A
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 10 A
10 AA
2007 2008 2009

2010 2011
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2.17
31
2016 2015 2014
IO 2.285,616,160 2,285,610,264 2,285,610,264
102,734 32,676 .
2.285,718,894 2,285,642,940 2,285,610,264
@
@ 2.12

2016

2015

2014 31
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2.18
31
2016 2015
BPO BPO 99.98% 99.98%
100% 100%
S. de R.L. de C.V. 100% 100%
AB 100% 100%
100% 100%
DO LTDA 100% 100%
100% 100%
USA
100% 100%
99.98% 99.98%
S.r.o. BPO s.r.o @
Sp Z.0.0 99.98% 99.98%
BPO sp z.o.0o ©
BPO S.DE R.L. DE.C.vVPUD - -
McCamiish LLC(1) 99.98% 99.98%
99.98% 99.98%
@
®)
BPO LLcD O - -
100% 100%
)
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve M 100% 100%
100% 100%
AG
AG
100% 100%
®
100% 100%
®
AG 100% 100%

A @
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AG(2)(6) 100% 100%
GmbH( Hafner Bauer & Odman 100% 100%
onbh PG
99.90% 99.90%
S_A_(4)
GmbH 100% 100%
ombH
100% 100%
3)
SAS 100% 100%
sas @
S.r.o. 100% 100%
S.r.o
®
100% 100%
GmbH®
100% 100%
®
100% 100%
®
B.V. 100% 100%
By, ®
Ltda 99.99% 99.99%%
Ltda. *
Sp. z.o0.0. 100% 100%
Sp. z.0.0. ®
100% 100%
®)
S.C. S.R.L. 100% 100%
S.C.
3)
S.R.L.
S.R.L. 100% 100%
S.R.L.
®
®)
LLC 100% 100%
€))
(10) 100% 100%
1an 100% 100%
Gmbh Y 100% 100%
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100% 100%
100% -
100% -
100% -

100% -

@ BPO
@

®

*

®)

(6) AG
(7)2014 14
®)

(9)2015 23
(10)2015

(11)

(12)2015
(13)2015
(14)2015 11 16
(15)

(16)2015 11 20
(17)2016 15

2.3

Skava Systems
Kallidus Inc.
100%
2.3

2015 2014 31

BPO

2016 2015 2014 31

AG

AG

AG

2014 14
AG

2014 12 19

100%

2.3

100%
100%

2.3
2.3
2.3

Sp Z.0.0

AG

31

2016 2015

DWA  LLC DWA @

16% 20%

) 2015 31

20% 15

DWA

DWA
DWA

LLC

LLC
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2016 31 DWA LLC 16%
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2015 31
DWA 15
15
BPO BPO
BPO BPO
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
2.11
31
2016 2015 2014
OOG® 15 5 10
2 2 2
17 7 12
(12016 2015 31

(2)2015 10 12
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(4)2016
30

31

2.19
IFRS

HILIFE

2.1
31

4.33

APAC

IFRS

ECS

IPS

2015 22

4.33
4.18

2016 15

2016

IPS
ECS

FS MFG
Hi-Tech

Finacle
IPS
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2.19.1

2016 31

FS MFG ECS RCL  HILIFE Hi-Tech
2,590 1,047 2,061 1,556 1,231 756 260 9,501
1,248 555 944 742 585 371 156 4,601
606 257 505 381 302 185 65 2,301
736 235 612 433 344 200 39 2,599
224
2,375
476
2,851
799
2,052
222
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2015 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,352 1,008 1,962 1,449 1,094 640 206 8,711
1,115 533 895 658 521 313 154 4,189
541 245 478 353 266 156 50 2,089
696 230 589 438 307 171 2 2,433
175
2,258
560
2,818
805
2,013

175
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2014 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,239 934 1,833 1,425 1,025 585 208 8,249
1,046 499 821 671 480 279 133 3,929
547 244 478 372 267 153 54 2,115
646 191 534 382 278 153 21 2,205
226
1,979
440
2,419
668
1,751

226
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2016 31

5,957 2,186 246 1,112 9,501
2,936 1,060 109 496 4,601
1,459 534 51 257 2,301
1,562 592 86 359 2,599
224

2,375

476

2,851
799
2,052
222

2015 31

5,357 2,097 209 1,048 8,711
2,558 1,028 115 488 4,189
1,303 508 44 234 2,089
1,496 561 50 326 2,433
175

2,258

560

2,818

805

2,013

175
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2014 31
5,005 2,015 213 1,016 8,249
2,385 990 109 445 3,929
1,318 512 46 239 2,115
1,302 513 58 332 2,205
226
1,979
440
2,419
668
1,751
226
2.19.3
2016 2015 2014 31 10%
2.20
2011 DHS 1-9
1-9
2013 10 30 DHS
DHS
2010 2011
1-9
2014 31 35

2013 12 31
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1933 1934 S-X-17 210.5-04(c)
2016 59 ©) Q) (5) 44
2015 36 4 29 ) 59
2014 17 - 23 4 36
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Infesys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31,

{Drollars in millions except equity share data)

Naote 20186 2015
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21 4 B35 4 859
Available-for-sale financial assets 2.2 1 140
Trade receivables 1,710 1,554
Unbilled revenue 457 455
Frepayments and other cumment assels 24 672 527
Derivative financial instruments 2.7 1w 16
Total current assets T.BD2 T.551
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 26 1.588 1,460
Goodwil 26 568 495
Intangible assets 26 145 102
Investment in associate 16 15
Available-for-sale financial assets 2.2 273 215
Deferred income lax assels 216 a a5
Income tax assets 216 789 G54
Other non-current assets 24 m a8
Total non-current assets 3,576 3,064
Total assets 11.378 10815
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade payables 58 22
Derivative financial instruments ar 1 -
Current income tax labilites 216 515 451
Client deposits 4 4
Uneamed revenus 201 168
Employee benefit obligations 202 1™
Provisions 28 T v
Other current liabilies 29 S40 927
Total current liabilities 1.998 1.820
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MNen-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities 216 a9 25
Other non-current liabilities 29 17 g
Total liabilities 2,054 1.853
Equity

Share capital - ¥ 5. ($016) par walue 2400 000 000
(1,200,000 000) authonzed equity shares, issued and outstanding
2,285,621 088 (1,142 805,132) equity shares, net of 11,323 576
{5,667 ,200) treasury shares each as of March 31, 2018 (March

a1, 2015) 199 109
Share premium 570 B59
Retained eamings 11,083 10,090
Other reserves - -
Other components of equity (2,528) (2,096)
Total eguity attributable to eguity holders of the company 9,324 8,762
MNon-contralling interests - -
Tatal equity 9,324 8,762
Total liabilities and equity 11.378 10,815
25,28,
Commitments and contingent kabilties and 2.16

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended March 31,

{Daollars in millions except equity share and per equity share data)

Note 2018 2015 2014
Revenues 9.501 8T B.249
Cost of sales 5,050 5374 5202
Gross profit 3,551 3337 2957
Operating expenses:
Seling and markeling expenses 522 480 431
Administrative expenses 654 59 =
Total operating expenses 1176 1079 a78
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Operating profit

Other income, net 213
Share in associate’s profit / {loss)

Profit before income taxes

Income tax expense 2.18
Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Mems thal will nol be reclassifed to profit of

loss;

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit

liability [ asset 211 and 2.16
ftems that may be reclassified subseguently

fo profit or less:

Farr value changes on avaiable-for-sale

financial assets

Exchange differences on translation of

22and 216

foreign operations

Total other comprehensive income, net
of tax

Total cemprehensive income

Profit attributable teo:

Owneers of the company

Non-contralling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable
1o:

Owners of the company

Mon-contralling interests

Earnings per equity share

Basic ($)

Dibuted ()

Weighted average egquity shares used in
computing earnings per equity share 27
Basic

2,375 2,258 1,979
476 560 440
2.851 2,818 2,419
799 805 868
2,062 2013 1,761
{2) (&) -

B 14 (17}
{436) {375) {616)
(432) (369) {633)
'I,ﬁﬂlil. 1,644 1,118
2,052 2013 1,761
2,052 2,013 1,751
1,620 1,644 1,118
1,620 1,644 1,118
0.60 0.88 077
0.90 0.88 077
2285 616,160 2285610264 2285610264
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Diluted 2,285 718,804 22855642040 2285610264

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of the consolidaled financial slatements.
Infesys Limited and subsidiaries

Censolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
{Dollars in millions except equity share data)
Shares * Share  Share Retained Other  Other Total
capitalpremium esarningsReservescomponents equity
of equity attributable
to equity
holders of
the

company

Balance as of April 1,
2013
Changes in equity for ﬂn.
year ended March 31,
2014
Remeasurement of the net

defined benefit liability ¢

571,402,566 B4 T04 T.666 = (1,103} 7.3

assel, net of tax effect

(Refer to MNaote 211 and

2.16) - - - - - - -
Dividends {including

corporate dividend tax)

i i o (519) = b (519)

Change in  accounting

policy - Adoption  of - - - | - 9 3
Revised 1AS 19

Fair wvalue changes aon

available-for-sale  financial

assets, net of tax effect

{Refer to Mote 2.2 and

2.186) - - - - - (17} (17)
Met profit - - - 1,751 - - 1,751
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Exchange differences on
translation of  fareign
operations - - - - - {B16) [E16)

Balance as of March 31,
571,402 566 B4 T04 B.852 - {1.727) 7.933
2014

Changes in equity for the

year ended March 31,

2015

Increase in share capital on

account of bonus issue

{Refer to Maote 5

2.12) 71402566 45 - - - - 45
Amount ublized for bonus

issue "' (Refer to Mate

2.12) = = {45) = 2 = (45)
Remeasurement of the net

defined benefit habilty /

asset, net of tax effect

{Refer to Mote 211 and

2.16) - - - - - (8) (&)
Dividends {including
corporate dindend tax) - - - (B15) - - (B15)

Fair wvalue changes on
available-for-sale  financil
assets, net of tax effect
(Refer to MNote 22 and
2.16) - - - - - 14 14
Net profit 5 = = 2.013 it = 2013
Exchange differences on
translation of  faoreign
operations - - - - - {375) {375}

Balance as of March 31,
i 1,142.805.132 109 659 10.090 - {2.098) 8,782

Changes in equity for the
year ended Mareh 31,
20186
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Shares issued on exercise
of employee stock aplions
Increase in share capital on

10,824 - - L o - i

account of bonus
issue'"{Refer to Note 2.12) 1,142.805,132 90 - - - - a0
Amount utilized for bonus
issue'! (Refer to  Mote
2.12) - - (90) = = - (90)
Transfer to other reserves - - - {B9) Ba - -
Transfer from ather
reserves on utiization - - = an (89) £ =
Emiployes stock
compensation expense
(refer o note 2.15) - - 1 - - - 1
Remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability /
asset, net of tax effect
{Refer to Mote 2.11 and

2.16) - - - - - 2) (2)
Dividends {including
corporate dividend tax) - - - (1,059) - - {1,069)

Fair value changes on
available—lor—sale financial

assets, net of tax effect - - - - - & L
{Refer o MNote 22 and

2.16)

Met profit - - - 2 052 - - 2,052

Exchange differences on
translation of  foreign

operations - - - - - [435) (436)
Balance as of March 31,
2016 2285621088 199 570 11,083 - (2,528) 89.324

' nef of treasury shares

@ exefudes freasury shares of 11.323576 as of March 3, 2018, 5667200 as of March 31, 2045 and
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2,833 600 as of March 31, 2014 and Apnl 1, 2013, held by consalidated trust

' Balance in cash flow hedging reserve as on March 31, 2016 is Ni

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consclidated financial statements
Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31,

{Dollars in millions)

MNote 2016 2015 2014
Operating activities: I . I .
Met proifit 2052 2013 1,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit 1o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amorization 25 and

26 222 175 226

Income on available—for-sale financial assets and
certificates of deposit = 8 )
Income tax expense 216 T899 805 BE8
Effect of exchange rate changes on assets and
liabilities 10 15 8
Deferred purchase price 23 23 41 3
Provisions for doubtful trade receivable (T 29 23
Other adjustiments 26 12 3
Changes in working capital
Trade recevables (225) (240) {232)
Prepayments and other assets (220} (81) (60)
Unbilled revenue {27} {6) (62)
Trade payables ar {3) 5
Client deposits - (2) 1
Uneamed revenue 43 45 (27)
Other liabdities and provisions 48 103 350
Cash generated from operations 2,754 2,858 2,841
Income taxes paid 218 (a92) (1,102} {638)
Met cash provided by cperating activities 1,352. 1.?56. 2,003
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Investing activities:

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment, net of

sale proceeds, including changes in retention money2 5 and

and capital creditors 29 (413) (3I6T) {451)
Investment in associate - {15} -

Payment for acquisthon of business, nel of cash

acquired (117 (206} =
Loans o employees (1) (1) 4)
Deposits placed with corporation 122) {22) {37)
Incame from available—for—sale financial assets and

certificates of deposit o ot -
Investment in quoted deblt securities (486) - {154}
Investment in certificates of deposit - - {210}
Redemption of cerificates of deposit - 135 74
Investment in Bguid mutual funds (3676) {3.901) (3,731)
Redemption of liquid mutual funds 3745 4098 3,681
Investment in fixed maturity plan securities - (5} (24}
Redemption in fixed maturity plan securities 5 25 -
Investment in preference securities (12) - -
Investment in other avallable—for—sale financial {3) - -
assets

Net cash used in Investing activities [-'I'Mll (205) (823)

Financing activities:
Fayment of dividends (including corporate dividend
tax) {1,058) (815} {519)

Net cash used in financing activities (1,0563) (815) (513)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents (253) (208) {351)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 329 T36 BB1
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 21 4 259 434 4,021
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 21 4.9‘35. 4.859. 434
Supplementary information: : :

Restricted cash balance 21 4 58 53

The accompanying nates form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Netes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Company overview

Infosys i a leading provider of consulting, technology, outsourcing and next-generation services. Along with
its subsidiaries, Infosys provides Business IT senvices (comprising application development and maintenance,
independent validation, infrastructure management, engineering services comprising product engineering and
life eycle solubons and business process management), Consulting and systems inlegration senvices
{comprising consulting, enterprise solutions, systems integration and advanced technologies), Products,
business platforms and solutions to accelerate ntellectual property-led innovation including Finacle, our
banking soluton;, and offenings in the areas of Analytics, Cloud, and Digstal Transformation.

Infosys together with its subsidiaries and controlled trusts is herein after referred to as the "Group®.

The company is a public limited company incorporated and domciled in India and has its registered office at
Bangalore, Karnataka, India. The company has its primary listings on the BSE Limited and Mational Stock
Exchange in India. The company's American Depositary Shares representing equity shares are also listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), Euronext London and Euronext Pans.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue by the company’s Board of Directors
on May 18, 2016

1.2 Basis of preparation of financlal statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in complance with Intemnational Financial
Reporting Standards as isued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IFRS), under the histonical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments and prepaid gratuity benefits
which have been measured at fair values. Accounting policies have been appled consistently 1o all penods
presented in these consoldated financial statements.

As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded fo the nearest digits, the figures
repored for all the quarters dunng the year might not always add up to the year figures reported in this

statement.

1.3 Basis of consolidation
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Infosys consolidates entities which it owns o controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the company, its controlled trusts and its subsidianes as disclosed in Note 218,
Control exists when the parent has power over the enfity, is exposed, of has nights, 1o vafiable retumns from its
invalvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums by using its power over the entity. Power
is demonstrated through existng rights that give the ability 1o direct relevant activities, those which
significantly affect the entity’s refums. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until
the date control ceases.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group
balances and transactions including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are ebminated upon
consolidation. These financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the
Group. Mon-controlling interests whach represent part of the net profl or loss and nel assels of subsidianes
that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the company, are excluded.

Associates are enfities over which the group has significant influence but not control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment is initially recognized at
cost, and the carrying amount is mcreased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss
of the investes after the acquisition date. The group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition

1.4 Use of sstimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimales,
judgments and assumpflions. These estimates, judgments amd assumptions affect the applicaton of
accounting polickes and the reported amounts of assels and habilibes, the disclosures of contingenl assels
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the penod. Applhcation of accounting policies that require criical accounting estimates mvolving complex and
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note

1.5, Accounting estimates could change from period o penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Approprate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes n circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
wihich changes are made and, if matenal, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

1.5 Critical accounting estimates

a. Revenue recognition
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The group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for is fixed-price contracts. Use of the
percentage-of-completion method requires the group to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a
proportion of the lotal efforts or cosis o be expended. Efforis or cosls expended have been used to measure
progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Provisions for
estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become
probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

b, Income taxes

The company's two major tax jursdichons are India and the LS though the company also fles tax relums in
other overseas jurisdictions. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions (also refer fo Note 2.16).

¢. Business combinations and intangible assets

Business combinations are accounted for using IFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations. IFRS 3 requires
the identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabiliies of the acquires. Significant estmates are
required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These
valuations are conducied by independent valuation experts

d, Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in
respect of perodic depreciation is derived after determining an estmate of an asset's expected useful lfe and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset i acquired and reviewed penodically, including at each
financial year end. The hves are based on histoncal expenence with similar assels as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

&. Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impaiment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount of
cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The
goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating
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units which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on
which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth
rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow progections take inlo
account past expenence and represent management's best estimate about future developmenis.

1.6 Revenue recognition

The company denives revenues primarnly from software development and related services and from the
licensing of software products. Amangements with customers for software related services are esther on a
fwed-price, fixed-imeframe or on a time-and-maternal basis.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue
from the end of the last illing o the balance sheet date i recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from
fed-price, ficed-tmelrame confracts, where there = no uncertainly as o measurement of collectabiity of
consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as to
measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncerainty is resolved
Efforts or costs expended have been used lo measure progress lowards completion as there s a direct
relatonship between input and productivity. Provisions for estimated bosses, if any, on uncompleted contracts
are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates
Costs and eamnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of costs and
eamings are classified as uneamed revenue. Deferred contract costs are amorized over the term of the
contract. Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the underying maintenance

arrangement.

In arrangements for software development and related services and maintenance services, the company has
applied the guidance in 1AS 18, Revenue, by applying the revenue recognition crteria for each separately
wentfiable component of a single transacton. The arrangements generally meet the critena for conssdening
software development and relaled services as separately wenthable components. For allocating the
consideration, the compamy has measured the revenue in respect of each separable component of a
fransaction at its fair value, n accordance with principles given in 1AS 18. The price that is regularly charged
for an tem when sold separately is the best evidence of is far value. In cases where the company is unable
to establish objective and reliable evidence of fair value for the software development and related senvices,
the company has used a residual method to allocate the armangement consideration. In these cases the
balance of the consideration, after allocating the fair values of undelivered components of a transachon has
been allocated to the delivered components for which specific fair values do not exist.
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License fee revenues are recognized when the general revenue recognition criteria given in IAS 18 are met
Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements: hoense, implementabon and
Annual Technical Services (ATS). The company has applied the principbes given in 1AS 18 o account for
revenues from these multiple element arrangements. Objective and reliable evidence of fair value has been
established for ATS. Objective and reliable evidence of fair value s the price charged when the element is
sold separately. When other services are provided in conjunction with the icensing arrangement and objective
and reliable evidence of their fair values have been established, the revenue from such contracts are
allocated to each component of the confract in a manner, whereby revenue is deferred for the undelivered
sefvices and the residual amounts are recognized as revenue for delivered elements. In the absence of
objective and reliable evidence of fair value for implementation, the entire arrangement fee for license and
implementation is recognized using the percentage-of-completon method as the implementation is performed
Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is
recognized as the serices are performed. ATS revenue is recognized ratably over the penod in which the
senvices are rendered,

Advances received lor sernces and products are reporied as chent deposits unbl all conditions for revenue

recognition are met.

The company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives 1o customers as a reduction of revenue
based on the ratable allocation of the discounts’ meentives amount 1© each of the underlying revenue
transaction that results in progress by the customer towards eaming the discount/ incentive. Also, when the
level of discount vanes with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the company recognizes the liabiity
based on itz estimate of the customer's future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria for the discount will
not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not recognized until the
payment is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. The company recognizes changes in the
estimated amount of abligations for discounts in the penod in which the change occurs. The discounts are
passed on to the customer either as direct payments o a3 a reduction of payments due from the customer.

The company presents revenues net of value-added taxes in its statement of comprehensive income.

1.7 Property. plant and equipment

Property, ptant and eguipment are stated al cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs
directly attributable (o acquisiion are capitalized until the property, plant and eguipment are ready for use, as

intended by management. The group depreciates properly, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-ine method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:
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Buildings: 22 - b years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and focures b years
Vehicles 5§ years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial
year end. (Refer ta note 2.5)

Advances paid towanrds the acquisition of property, plant and eqguipment outstanding at each balance shest
date and the cost of assets not put 1o use before such date are disclosed under “Capital work-in-progress’.
Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of
comprehensive income when incurred, The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eiminated from the
fmancial statements upon sale or reterement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in
net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. Assels o be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
camying value or the fair value less cost to sell

1.8 Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of IFRS 2
{Revised), Business Combinations.

The cost of an acquisition i measured at the fair value of the assets transfered, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred
o the Group. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. ldentfiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

Business combinations between entities under common control is outside the scope of IFRS 3 (Revised),
Business Combinations and is accounted for at carmying value.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combinaton such as finders’ fees, legal
fees, due dibgence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are expensed as incumed.

1.9 Employes benefits
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1.8.1 Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the Gratuity Plan”) covenng ehgible
empboyees of Infosys and its Indian subsidianes. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested
empboyees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Group.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuanal valuation, performed by an independent
actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The company fully contributes. all
ascerained labilities to the Infosys Limited Emplovees' Gratuity Fund Trust (the Trust). In case of infosys
BPO and EdgeVerve, contributions are made to the Infosys BPO's Employees' Gratuity Fund Trust and
EdgeVemne Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust, respectively. Trustees administer contributions
made to the Trusts and contmbutions are invested in a scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India as

permitted by law of India.

The Group recognizes the net abligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or lability
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit iability [ asset are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by
applying the discount rale used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in net profits in the statement of

comprehensive income

1.9.2 Superannuation

Certain employees of Infosys, Infasys BPO and EdgeVerve are participants in a defined contribution plan. The
Group has no further obligatons to the Plan beyond is monthly contributions which are penodscally
contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

1.9.3 Provident fund

Eligible employees of Infosys receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the
eligible employee and the company make monthly contrbutions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified
percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The company contnbutes a part of the contnbubons to the
Infosys Limited Employess' Provident Fund Trust. The trust invests in specific designated instruments as
pemitted by Indian law. The remaining portion is contributed to the govermment administered pension fund
The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being administered by the
government. The company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate.
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In respect of Indian subsidianes, eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined
contnbuton plan. Both the employee and the respective companies make monthly contnbutions to this
provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. Amounts collected
under the provident fund plan are deposited in @ government administered provident fund. The companies
have no further abligation to the plan beyand their monthly contributions.

1.8.4 Compensated absences

The Group has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulaling in
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensaled absences is determined by actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit methed on the additional amount expected to be paidiavailed as a result of the unused
entitiement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date, Expense on non-accumulating compensated

absences is recognized in the period in which the absences oceur.

1.10 Share-based compensation

The: Group recognizes compensation expense relating to share-based payments in net profit using a fair-value
measurement methad in accordance with IFRS 2, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards
is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requesite service period for each separately westing
portion of the award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase lo share

Premuium.

1.11 Earnings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the period. Diluted eamings
per equity share is computed by dhading the net profit altributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for denving basic earmnings per equity share and also
the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares, The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
equity shares been actually issued at fair value {ie. the average market value of the outstanding equity
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the penod, unless
isswed at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each penod

presented.
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The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all penods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected pnor to the approval of
the fnanaal statements by the Baard of Directors.

1.12 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of business acguisition in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acqguisition, a gain
is recognized immediately in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. Goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

1.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impaiment. Intangible assets are
amorlized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that
they are available for use. The estimated useful ife of an identifiable intangible assel = based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected fulure cash flows from the asset. Amontization methods and useful nves are
reviewed penodically including at each financial year end.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred
unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project i demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can
be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of matenial, direct labour, overhead
cosis that are direclly atinbutable to prepanng the assel for ks intended use. Research and development
costs and software development costs incured under contractual amangements with customers are
accounted as cost of sales

1.14 Financial instruments

Financial instruments of the Group are classified in the following categories: non-dervative financial
instruments compnsing of loans and recenvables, available-for-sale financial assets and trade and other
payables; derivative fimancial instruments; share capital and treasury shares. The classification of financial
instruments depends on the purpose for which those were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial
assets are accounted for al trade date.

210/303

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



a. Non-derivative financial instruments

I} Leans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments thal are not
quoded in am active markel. They are presenied as current assels, except for those maturing later than 12
months after the balance sheet date which are presented as non-curment assets, Loans and receivables are
measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently camed at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, kess any impairment 1oss of provisions for doubtful accounts. Loans and recesvables
are represented by trade receivables, net of allowances for impairment, unbilled revenue, cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, certificates of deposit, and other assets. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
and bank deposils and deposits with corporations. The company considers all highly hiquid invesimenis with a
remaining matunty at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. Cenlificates of deposit is a negotiable money market instrument for
funds deposited al a bank for a specified time penod. For these financial mstruments, the carrying amounts
approcamate B value due to the short matunty of these instruments. Loans and receivables are reclassified
o available-for-sale financial assets when the financial asset becomes guoted in an active market

{ii} Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or are nat
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized nitially at fair value
plus transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these are measured at far value and changes
therein, other than impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on available-for-sale monetary
tems are recognized directly in other comprehensive income. When an invesiment is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income s transferred to net profit in the statement of
comprehensive income. These are presented as cument assets unless management intends to dispose of the
assets after 12 months from the balance sheet date.

{iii) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. For trade and other payvables matunng within one year from the balance

sheet date, the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

b. Derivative financial instruments
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The group holds demvative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option confracts to

mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these
contracts s a bank.

(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss,

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the group believes that these denvatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
nat gualfy for hedge accounting under IAS 309, Financal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Any
derivative that is either not designated as hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per IAS 39, is
categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss,

Desivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and atinbutable transaction costs
are recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income when incurred, Subsequent to initial
recognibion, these denvatives are measured al fair value through profit or loss and the resulling exchange
gains or losses are included n other income. Assels/ liabilties in this category are presented as current
assets/icurrent labilities. if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after
the balance sheet date

(i) Cash flow hedge

The group designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate
the risk of foreign exchange expasure on highly probable forecast cash ransactons.

When a denvative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of chamges in the fair value of the derivative is recognized
immediately in the net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. If the hedging instrument no longer
meets the critera for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging
instrument expires or i sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain o loss on the hedging instrument
recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging
reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs, The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash
flow hedging reserve is transferred to the net prafit in the statement of comprehensive income upon the
occurrence of the related forecasted fransaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur,
then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to net profit in the statement of

comprehensive income.,
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¢, Share capital and treasury shares

Ordinary Shares

Ordmary shares are classiied as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary
shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects,

Treasury Shares

When any entity within the Group purchazes the company’s ordinary shares, the consideration pasd ineluding

any directly attnbutable ncremental cost is presented as a deduction from total equity, until they are cancelled,

sold or reissued. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequenily, the amount recerved is recognized
as an increase in equity, and the resuting surplus or deficit on the transaction s ransferred o from share

premium.

1.15 Impairment

a, Financlal assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objectve evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial assel is considerad impaired if objective evidence indicates
that one or more events hawve had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
Individually significant financial assels are tested for impairment on an individusal basis. The remaining
fimancial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics,

{i} Loans and recelvables

Impairment koss in respect of loans and receivables measured at amortized cost are calculated as the
difference between their camying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Such impairment boss is recognized in et profit in the stalement of
comprehensive iNcome.

{ii} Available-for-sale financial assets
Signaficant or prolonged decline n the fair value of the security below ils cost and the disappearance of an
active trading market for the secunty are objective evidence that the security is impaired. An impairment loss

in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value and is recognized
in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative loss that was recognized in other
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comprehensive income s transfermed to net profit in the statement of comprehensive income upon

impairment.

b, Non-financial assets

(i} Goadwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be
impaired, relying on a number of factors ncluding operaling resuits, business plans and future cash flows. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acguired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's
cash generating units (CGU) or groups of CGU's expected to benefit from the synergies ansing from the
business combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assels or group of assets. Imparment occurs when the
carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The
recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-use
15 the present value of future cash flows expected o be denved from the CGLU.

Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carmying amount of goodwill allocated fo the
CGLU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carmrying amount of each asset in
the CGU_ An impairment loss on goodwill is recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive ncome
and i not reversad in the subsequent peniod.

{ii} Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicale that thewr carmying amouwnis may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ie. the higher of the fair value less cost lo sell and the
value-in-wse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are larmgely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in net profit in the statement of
comprehensive income is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the

estimated recoverable amount of the asset.

c. Reversal of impairment loss

214/303



An impaiment loss for financial assets is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
In respect af other assels, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estmates used to
determine the recoverable amount. The carmying amount of an asset other than goodwill is increased fo its
revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have
been determined (nel of any accumulated amortizalion of depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impaiment loss for an asset other than goodwill and
available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities is recognized in net profit n the statement of
comprehensive income. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is
recognized in other comprehensive incame.

1.16 Fair value of financial instruments

I determining the fair valve of its financial nstruments, the group uses a vanety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounled cash flow analysis, available guoted market pnces and dealer quotes. All
methods of assessing fair value resull i general approximation of value, and such value may never actually
be realized.

For all other financial mstruments, the carmying amounts approximate fair value due (o the short matunty of
those instruments. The fair value of secunties, which do not have an active market and where it is not
practicable to determine the fair values with sufficient reliability, are camied at cost less impairment

1.17 Previsions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past eveni, the Group has a present legal or constructive
abligation that is reasonably esiimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lability.

a. Post sales client support

The group provides its chents with a fixed-penod post sales support for comections of ermors and support on all
its fived-pnce, foced-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such support services are accrued at the time
related revenues are recorded and included in cost of sales. The group estimates such costs based on
historical experence and estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for any material changes in assumplions
and likelihood of occurrence.
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b, Onerous contracts

Provmsions for onerous conitfacts are recognized when the expected benehils o be defived by the Group from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the confract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected nel cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision 1= established the Group recognizes
any impairment loss on the assels associated with that contract.

1.18 Foreign currency

Functional currency

The functional currency of Infosys, Infosys BPO, EdgeVerve, Skava and controlled trusts is the Indian rupee.
The functional currencies for Infosys Australia, Infosys China, Infosys Mexico, Infosys Sweden, Infosys Brasil,
Infosys Public Services, Infosys Shanghai, Infosys Lodestone, Infosys Americas, Infosys Mova, Panaya,
Kallsdus and Moah are the respective local currencies. These financial statements are presenled in U.5 dollars
(rounded off o the nearest million).

Transactions and fransiations

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilites are translated into the relevant funcbional
cumency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, The gains or losses resuliing from such
translations are included in net profit n the statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary liabilibes denominated n a foreign currency and measured at fair value are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary liabilbes denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at
the exchange rate prevalent at the dale of transaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign curmrency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the pencd in which the transaction 15 sellled. Revenue, expense and cash-flow items
denominated in foreign curmencies are translated into the relevant lunctional currencies usmg the exchange
rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

The translaton of financial statements of the foreign subsidianes o the presentaton currency of the company
iz performed for assets and liabilities using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and for
revenue, expense and cash-flow items using the average exchange rate for the respective pericds. The gains
or losses resulting from such translation are included in currency translation reserves under other components

of equity. When a subsidiary is disposed of, in full, the relevant amount is transferred to net profit in the
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statement of comprehensive income. However when a change in the parent’s ownership does not result in
loss of control of a subsidiary, such changes are recorded through equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjusiments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.

1.19 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense s recognized in net
profit in the statement of comprehensive income except 1o the extent that it relates to lems recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in eguity. Current income tax for current and prior periods is
recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authornties, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assets and labilites are recognized for all temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their camying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises
from the imitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and affects neither accountng mor Laxable profit or loss at the tme of the transaction. Deferred tax assels are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized

Deferred income tax assets and liabilites are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected fo be recovered or seitled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabiities is recognized as income of expense in the period that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. & deferred income tax asset is recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the wundisinbuted
eamings of subsidianes and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The group offsets cument tax assets and cumrent tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle
on a net basis, or o realize the asset and settle the hability simultanecusky. Tax benefits of deductions eamed
on exercise of employee share options in excess of compensation charged to income are credited to share

premium

1.20 Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a lkability on the date of approval by the shareholders and intenm
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the company's Board of Directars.
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1.21 Operating profit

Operating profit for the Group is computed considering the revenues, net of cost of sales, selling and
marketing expenses and administrative expenses,

1.22 Other income

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, dividend income and exchange gainfloss on forward
and options contracts and on transkation of other assets and kabiities. Interest income is recognized using the
effective interest methed. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

1.23 Leases

Leases under which the group assumes substantially all the rsks and rewards of ownership are classified as
fnance leases. When acquired, such assels are capilalized at fair value or presenl value of the mmimum
lease payments al the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease paymenls under operating leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income over
the lease term,

1.24 Government grants

The Group recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the condstions
attached to them shall be complied with, and the grants will be received. Govemnment grants related to assets
are freated as deferred income and are recognized in met profit in the statement of comprehensive income on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Government grants related to revenue are
recognized on a systemabc basis in nel profit n the statement of comprehensive income aver the penods
necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.

1.25 Recent accounting pronouncements

1.25.1 Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial instruments: In July 2014, the Intemational Accountng Standards Board issued the final
version of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The standard reduces the complexity of the current rules on financial
instruments as mandated in IAS 38, IFRS 9 has fewer classification and measurement categories as

compared to AS 38 and has eliminated the categories of held to maturity, available for sale and loans and
recevables. Further it eliminates the rule-based reguirement of segregating embedded dervatives and
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tainting rubes pertaining to held to matunty investments. For an investment in an equity instrument which is not
held for trading, IFRS 8 permits an irrevocable election, an initial recognition, on an individual share-by-share
basis, to present all fair value changes from the mnvestmenl i other comprebensive income. Mo amount
recognized in ather comprehensive income would ever be reclassified to profit or loss, It requires the entity,
which chooses to measure a liability at fair value, fo present the portion of the fair value change attibutable to
the entity's own credil nsk in the other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurmed koss model’ in 1AS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ model. The measurement
uses a dual measurement approach, under which the loss allowance i3 measured as either 12 maonth
expected credit losses or lifetime expected eredil losses. The standard also introduces new presentation and
disclosure requirements.

The effective date for adoption of IFRS 9 is annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018, though
early adoplion is permitied. The Group has elected to early adopt the standard effective April 1, 2016 and the
impact on the consolidated financial statements is not material.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers: In May 2014, the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers. The core principle of the new standard
is that an enfity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods of services 1o customers in
an amouwnt that reflects the consideration to which the entity expecis to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from the entity's contracts with customers. The standard
pemits the use of either the refrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The effective date for
adoption of IFRS 15 is annual penods begmnning on or after January 1, 2017, though early adoption is
permitted. In Seplember 2015, the IASE issued an amendment to IFRS 15, deferring the adoption of the
standard to pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018 instead of January 1, 2017.

The Group s evaluatng the effect of IFRS 15 on the consolidated hinancal statements including the Fansibion
method to be adopled and the related disclosures. The group continues to evaluate the effect of the standard

on angoing financial reporting.

IFRS 16 Leases: On January 13, 2016, the Intermational Accouwnting Standards Board issued the final version
of IFRS 16, Leases. IFRS 16 will replace the existing leases Standard, 1AS 17 Leases, and related
Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognifion, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. IFRS 16 miroduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee 1o recognize assels and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Curently, operating lease expenses are
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charged to the statement of comprehensive income. The Standard also contains enhanced dischosure

requirements for lessees. IFRS 16 substantially carmes forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17,
The effective date for adoption of IFRS 16 is annual perods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, though
early adoption is permitted for companies apphying IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
Group is yel to evaluate the requiremnents of IFRS 16 and the impact on the consolidated financial staterments.
2 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2.1 Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
{Dedlars in millions)

As of
Mareh 21, 201 EIHIH:"I 31,2018
Cash and bank deposits 4,139 41492
Deposits with inancial instiution 98 BET
4,835 4,858

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 include restricted cash and bank
balances of $74 million and $58 millicn, respectively. The restncbons are pnmanly on account of cash and
bank balances held by imevocable trusts controlled by the company, bank balances held as margin money
deposits against guarantees and balances held in unpaid dividend bank accounts.

The deposits maintained by the Group with banks and financial institution comprise of time deposits, which
can be withdrawn by the Group at any point without prior nofice or penalty on the principal.

The table below provides details of cash and cash equivalents:

(Dodlars im millions)

As of

March 31, 2016 Mareh 31,
2015

Current accounts
ANZ Bank, Taiwan 2 1
Banamex Bank, Mexico 1 2
Bank of Amernica, USA 103 145
Bank of America, Mexico a 4
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Bank of Zachodni WBK S_A., Poland
Barclays Bank, UK

Bank Leumi, lsrael {US Dollar Account)
Bank Leumi, Israel {Israeli Sheqel account)
China Merchants Bank, China

Citibank MN.A., Australia

Citibank N A, Brazil

Citibank N.A., China

Citibank N A, China (U.S. Dollar account)
Citibank N.A., Cosla Rica

Citibank N.A., Japan

Citibank N.A., Czech Republic

Citibank MN_A., India

Citibank M.A., New Zealand
Citibank N.A., South Africa

Citibank MN.A., USA

Commerzbank, Germany

Crédit Industral et Commercial Bank, France
Deutsche Bank, Belgium

Deutsche Bank, Malaysia

Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic

Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic (U 5. dollar account)
Deutsche Bank, France

Deutsche Bank, Germany

Deutsche Bank, India

[Deutsche Bank, Metherands

Deutsche Bank, Philippines

Deutsche Bank, Philippines (U.S. dollar account)
Deutsche Bank, Poland

Deutsche Bank, Singapore

Deutsche Bank, United Kingdom

Deutsche Bank-EEFC (Swiss Franc account)
Deutsche Bank-EEFC {Euro account)
Deutsche Bank-EEFC (LS. dollar account)

Deutsche Bank-EEFC, India (United Kingdom Pound Sterfing account)

HSBC Bank, Brazil
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HSBC Bank, Hong Hong

ICICI Bank, India

ICICI Bank-EEFC, India (L5, dollar account)

Mordbanken, Sweden

Raiffeisen Bank, Czech Republc

Raiffeisen Bank, Romania

Royal Bank of Canada, Canada

Royal Bank of Scottand, China

Royal Bank of Scotfand, China (U.S. Dollar account)

State Bank of India, India

Punjab National Bank, India

Silicon Valley Bank, LUSA

Silicon Valley Bank (Eurg account)

Silicon Valley Bank (United Kingdom Pound Stering account)
Umion Bank of Switzerland, AG

Union Bank of Switzerand, AG (U.5. dollar account)

Union Bank of Switzerland, AG (Euro account)

Unign Bank of Switzerdand AG, (United Kingdom Pound Sterling account)
Wells Fargo Bank NA., USA

Westpac, Australia

Deposit accounts

Andhra Bank, India
Allzhabad Bank, India

Axis Bank, India

Bank of Baroda, India
Bank of India, India
Canara Bank, India
Ceniral Bank of India, India
Citibank, India

Corporation Bank, India
Deutsche Bank, Poland
Development Bank of Singapore, Singapore
HOFC Bank, India

ICICI Bank, India

IDB1 Bank, india
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1
1 1
10 3
a 1
2 2
4 e
2 1
1 0
3 6
1 1
303 236
143 27
i a2
202 239
i 383
1 431
339 501
232 221
19 -
194 204
36 19
- 6
400 336
B34 507
287 137
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Indusind Bank, India

ING Vysya Bank, India

Indian Overseas Bank, India
Jammu and Kashmir Bank, India
Kotak Mahindra Bank, India
Matonal Australia Bank Limited, Australia
Ornental Bank of Commerce, India
Pumjab Mational Bank, India

State Bank of India, Indsa

South Indian Bank, India
Syndicate Bank, India

Union Bank of india, India

Vijaya Bank, India

Yes Bank, India

Depesits with financial institution
HOFC Limited, India

Total

38 12

L 16

189 104

4 L

a1 1

i 14
207 253
a 95

57 g

3 4

191 65
21 168
48 75
109 97
3,838 3.956
796 B67
796 86T
4,935 4,859

2.2 Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in mutual fund units, gquoted debt securibes and unquoled equity and preference secunties are

classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Cost and fair value of these investments are as follows:

{Dodlars in millions)

Az of

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015

Current

Mutual fund wnits:

Ligquid mutual funds

Cost and fair value

Quoted debt securities:

Cost

Gross unrealized holding gainsi{losses)
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Fair value

Fixed Maturity Plan Securities
Cost

Gross unrealized holding gains

Famr value

Non-Current

Quoted debt securities:

Cost

Groas unrealized holding gains / (losses)

Famr value

Unguoted equity and preference securities:

Cost

Gross unrealized holding gains
Fair value

Others:

Cost

Grross unrealized holding gains

Fair value

Total available-for-sale financial assets

- 5
- 5
11 140
250 216
B 1
256 215
14 -
14 -
3 -

9 -
273 213
284 355

Mutual fund units:

Liquid mutual funds:

The fair value of guid mutual funds as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 was $10 million and $135

million, respectively. The fair value is based on guoted prices

Fixed maturity plan securities:

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the company redeemed fixed maturity plans securnties of $5 million
On redemption, the unrealized gain of less than $1 million pertaining to these secunties has been reclassified

from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

The fair value of fixed matunty plan secunties as of March 31, 2015 is $5 million. The fair value was based on
quodes reflected in actual tfransachons in similar nstruments as available on March 31, 2015, The net
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unrealized gain of less than 1 million, net of taxes has been recognized in other comprehensive income for
the year ended March 31, 2015

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the company redeemed fixed maturty plans secunities of $19 million.
On redemption, the unrealised gain of 1 milion, net of taxes of $1 million, pertaining to these securiies has
been reclassified from other comprehensive income o profit or loss during the year ended March 31, 2015,
The nel unrealized gain of $1 milion, net of taxes of less than $1 milion has been recognized in other
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2014 (Refer to note 2.16).

Quoted debt securities:

The fair value of the guoted debt securities as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 is $257 million and
$215 million, respectively. The net unrealized gain of $6 million net of taxes of $1 million, has been recognized
in ather comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016. The net unrealized gain of 315 million net
of taxes of 32 milkon, has been recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,
2015 The net unrealized loss of 518 million, net of taxes of $2 million, has been recognized in other
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2014. The fair value is based on the quoted prices and
market observable inputs (Refer to note 2.16).

2.3 Business combinations

MeCamish

During fiscal 2010, Infosys BPO acquired 100% of the voting interests in McCamish Systems LLC
(McCamish), a business process solubons provider based in Aflanta, Georgia, in the United States. The
business acquisition was conducted by entering into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement for cash
consideration of 337 million and contingent consideration of up to 320 million, The fair values of the contingent
consideraon and s undiscounted walue on the dale of acquesition were 59 milbon and $15 million,
respectively.

The payment of contingent consideration was dependent upon the achievement of cerfain revenue targets
and nel margin targets by McCamish over a penod of 4 years ending March 31, 2014. Further, contingent to
McCamish signing any deal with tolal revenues of $100 milion or more, the aforesaid penod coukd be
extended by 2 years

The fair value of the contingent consideration was determined by discounting the estimated amount payable
to the previous owners of McCamish on achievement of certain financial targets. The key inputs used for the
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determination of fair value of contingent consideration were the discount rate of 13.9% and the probabilities of
achievement of the net margin and the revenue targets ranging from 50% to 100%.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, pursuant o McCamish entering into the asset purchase agreement
with Seabury & Smith Inc., the company conducted an assessment of the probability of McCamish achieving
the required revenue and nel margin targels pertaining o contingent consideration. The assessmenl was
based on the actual and projected revenues and net margins pertaining to McCamish post consummation of
the asset purchase transaction. Consequently, the fair value of the contingent consideration and its related
undiscounted value was determined at $3 million and 34 million, respectively and the related liability no longer
reqguired was reversed in the statement of comprehensive income. The contingent consideration was
estimated to be in the range between $4 million and 56 million.

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the liability related to the contingent consideration increased by less
than $1 million due to passage of time.

During March 2014, an assessment of the probability of McCamish achieving the required revenwe and net
margin targets pertaining to the contingent consideration was conducted and the enbire contingent
consideration was reversed in the statement of comprehensive income as it was estimated that the iability is
no lenger required

Infesys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

On October 22, 2012, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interests in Lodestone Holding AG, a global
management consultancy firm headgquartered i Zurich. The business acquisition was conducted by entering
into a share purchase agreement for a cash consideration of $219 million and an additonal consideration of
up to $112 milkon, which the company refers to as deferred purchase price, estimated on the date of
acquisition, payable to the selling shareholders of Lodestone Holding AG who are continuously employed or
otherwise engaged by the Group during the three vear period following the date of the acquisition. This
transaction is reated as post acquisition employee remuneration expense as per IFRS 3R. During the year
ended March 31, 2016, the liability towards post-acquisiion employee remunerabon expense was sefthed.

For fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, a post-acquisttion employee remuneration expense of $23 million, $41 million
and $31 million, respectively, is recorded in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income

Panaya

On March &, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interests in Panaya Inc. a Delaware Corporation in the
United States. Panaya is a leading provider of automation technology for large scale enterprise and software
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management. The business acquisition was conducted by entening into a share purchase agreement for cash
consideration of $225 million.

Panaya's CloudCualty ™ suite positions Infosys o bring automation to several of its service lines via an agile
SaaS model, and helps mitigate risk, reduce costs and shorten time fo market for clients. The excess of the
purchase consideration paid over the fair value of nel assets acquired has been atiributed o goodwill.

The purchase price has been allocated based on Management's estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Component Acquires’s  Fair value Purchase price
ecarrying adjustments allocated

amoumnt
Property, plant and eguipment 2 - 2
Net current assets” & - &
Intangible assets — technology - g 39
Intangible assets — trade name - 3 3
Intangible assets — customer contracts and relationships - 13 13
Intangible assets — non compete agreements = 4 4
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets - (18] (18)
B a3 51
Goodwill 174
Total purchase price 225

* Includes cash and cash equivalents acquired of 519 million.

The goodwill 1= not tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade receivables acquired and its fair value is $9 million and the amounts have been
largely collected.

The fair value of total cash consideration as at the acquisition date was $225 millian

The transaction costs of $4 million related 1o the acquisition have been incleded under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2015,

Kallidus Inc. {d.b.a Skava)
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On June 2, 2015, Infosys acquered 100% of the voling interests in Kalidus Inc., US, a leading provider of
digital expenence solutions, ncluding mobile commerce and in-store shopping expenences lo large retal
clients and 100% of the voting interests of Skava Systems Private Limited, an affiliate of Kallidus. The
business acquisition was conducted by entering into @ share purchase agreement for cash consideration of
$91 million and a contingent consideraton of up o 520 malkon.

Infosys expects to help its clients bring new digital experiences to their customers through IP-led technology
offerings, new automation tools and skill and expertise in these new emerging areas. The excess of the
purchase consideration pad over the fair value of net assets acquired has been attributed to goodwill.

The purchase price has been allocated based on management's estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:
(Dolars i millions)

Component Acquires's Fair value Purchase price
carrying  adjustments allacated
ameunt

et Assets* G - &
Intangible assets — technology - 21 21
Intangible assets — trade name - 2 2
Intangible assets — customer contracts and relationships - 7 27
Deferred tax abiliies on ntangible assels - (20) (20)
& 30 a8

Goodwill m
Total purchase price 107

* includes cash and cash equivalenis acquired of 54 million.

The goodwill iz not tax deductible.

The gross amount of frade receivables acquired and its fair value is $9 million and the amounts have been
fully collected.

The acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideraton as of the acquisition date is as follows:
(Doltars in millions)

Component Consideration settled

Cash Faid a1
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Fair value of contingent consideration 16
Total purchase price 107

The payment of contingent consideration to sellers of Kallidus is dependent upon the achievement of certain
financial targets by Kallidus over a penod of 3 years ending on December 31, 2017,

The fair value of contingent consideration is determined by discounting the estimated amount payable to the
sellers of Kallidus on achievement of certain financial targets. At the acquisition date, the key inputs used in
determination of the fair value of contingent consideration are the discount rate of 14% and the probabilities of
achievement of the financial targets.

The transaction costs of $2 million related to the acquisition have been included under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016

Meah Consulting LLC

On November 16, 2015, Infosys has acquired 100% membership interest in Noah Consulting, LLC, a keading
provider of advanced information management consulting services for the oil and gas industry, The business
acquisition was conducted by entenng into a share purchase agreement for cash consideration of $33 million,
a contingent consideration of up to 35 million and an additional consideration of up to $32 million, refered to
as retention bonus payable to the employees of Moah at each anniversary year following the acquisibon date
for the next three years, subject o their continuous employment with the group at each anniversary.

This acquisition combines Noah's industry knowledge, information strategy planning, data govemnance and
architecture capabalies with Infosys’ ability to provide technobogy and outsourcing sernices an a global scale
1o odl and gas chents. The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of net assels acquired
has been attributed o goodwill

The purchase price has been allocated based on management's estimates and independent appraisal of far
values as follows:
(Dofars in millions)

Component Acquiree’'s Fair value Purchase price
carrying  adjustments allocated

amount
Mel Assets" B - &
Intangible assets — technical know-how - 4 4
Intangible assets — trade name i 4 4
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Intangible assets - customer contracts and relationships - 18 18

6 28 2
Goodwill 5
Total purchase price 37

* Includes cash and cash egquivalents acquired of 3 million.

Goodwill of §1 million is tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade receivables acquired and its fair value is $4 million and the amounts have been
fargely collected.

The acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:
(Dolfars in milfions)

Component A Consideration settled
Cash Paid - 33
Fair value of contingent consideration 4
Total purchase price aT

The: fair value of contingent consideration is determined by discounting the estimated amount payable to the
sellers of Noah on achievement of certain financial targets. At the acquisition date, the key inputs used in
determinabon of the fair value of contingent considerabon are the driscount rate of 32% and the probabilities of
achievement of the financial targets. During fiscal 2016, based on an assessment of Noah achieving the
targets for the year ended December 31, 2015 and year ending December 31, 2016, the entire contingent
consideration has been reversed in the statement of comprehensive income

The retention bonus i treated as a post-acquisition employes remuneration expense as per IFRS 3R. For the
perod from the closing of the acquisition to March 31, 2016, a post-acquisition employee remuneration

expense of $8 milkon has been recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.

The transaction costs of $2 million related to the acquisition have been included under administrative
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 21, 2016.

EdgeVerve Systems Limited

EdgeVerve was created as a wholly owned subsidiary o focus on developing and selling products and
platforms. On April 15, 2014, the Board of Directors of Infosys authonzed the Company o execute a Business
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Transfer Agreement and related documents with EdgeVerve, subject to securing the requisite approval from
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. Subsequentlty, at the AGM held on June 14, 2014, the
shareholders authonsed the Board Lo enter into a Business Transfer Agreement and related documents with
EdgeVernve, with effect from July 1, 2014 or such other date as may be decided by the Board of Directors. The
company had undertaken an enterprise valuation by an independent valuer and accordingly the business was
transferred for a conzideration of 570 million 421 crome) with effect from July 1, 2014 which was settled
through the issue of fully paid up equity shares.

The transfer of assets and liabilities s accounted for at carmying values and does not have any impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Finacie and Edge Services

Om Apnl 24, 2015, the Board of Directors of Infosys authonized the Company to execute a Business Transfer
Agreement and related documents with EdgeVerve, a wholly owned subsidiary, to transfer the business of
Finacle and Edge Services. Posl the requisite approval from shareholders through postal ballot on June 4,
2015, a Business Transfer Agreement and other related documents were execuled with EdgeVerve 1o transher
the business with effect from August 1, 2015, The company has undertaken an enterprise valuation by an
independent valuer and accordingly the business were transferred for a consideration of 3,222 crore
{approximately 3491 million) and €177 crore (approximately $27 milbon) for Finacke and Edge Services,
respectively.

The consideration was setfled through issue of 850,000,000 equity shares amounting to ¥ 850 crore
{approximately 5129 million) and 254 900,000 non-convertible redeemable debentures amounting to 2 549
crore (approximately $389 milion) in EdgeVerve, post the requisite approval from shareholders on December
11, 2015

The: transfer of assets and labilities was accounted for at camying values and did not have any impact on the
consclidated financial statements.

2.4 Prepayments and other assets

Prepayments and other assets consist of the following:
{Dollars in millions)
As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Current
Rental deposits 2 4
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Security deposits

Loans and advances to employees
Prepaid expenses '

Interest accrued and not due
Withholding taxes '’
Deferred contract cost
Deposit with corporation

Advance paymenls o vendors for supply of goods '™
Other assets

L}]

Nen-current

Loans and advances to employees
Security deposits

Deposit with corporation

Prepaid gratuity

Prepaid expenses '

Deferred contract cost ™"

Rental deposits

Financial assels in prepayments and other assets

46 35
30 16
106 63
72 218
7 -
187 176
17 13
4 1
672 527
4 5
12 1
] 9

1 4
13 i
50 -
22 8
m 38
783 585
393 313

“'Non-financial assets

Withholding taxes primarily consist of input tax credits. Other assets primandy represent travel advances and
ather recoverables. Secunty deposis relate pnncapally lo leased lelephone hnes and electnoity supphes.
Deferred contract costs are upfront costs incurred for the contract and are amortized over the term of the

contract.

Deposit with corporation represents amounts deposited to sette certain employee-related obligations as and

when they anise during the normal course of business.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Foflowing are the changes in the carmying value of property, plant and equipment for the yvear ended March 31,

2016:
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Land Buildings Plant and Computer Furniture Vehicles Total
machinery equipment and
fixtures
Gross carrying wvalue as of
April 1, 2015 250 940 337 535 188 6 2,257
Additions 9 68 76 168 40 1 362
Deletions
- - (1} (60) (1] i2) (64)

Translation difference {15) (53] {207 (28) (10 {1 {127)
Gross carrying value as nf. . - . . . .
Mareh 31, 2016 244 955 382 615 218 4 2428
Accumulated depreciation as
of April 1. 2015 (2 {317) (207) {365) {132) 3} (1.027)
Depreciation (1 (33) (49) (B84) (24) {1 {192)
Accumulated  depreciation  on
deletions - - 1 a5 1 1 38
Translation difference 1 18 12 18 i - 55
Accumulated depreciation as
of March 31, 2016 (3) (332) (243) (395) {143) (3) (1,125)
Capital work-in-progress as uf. - - I . - .
March 31, 20186 286
Carrying value as of March B'I.. : : i : : :
2016 4 623 149 220 69 1 1.569
Capltal work-in-progress as of
April 1, 2015 230
Carrying value as of April 1,
2018 247 623 130 170 57 3 1.460

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and eqguipment for the year ended March 31,
2015:
{Dodlars im millions)

Land Buildings Plant and Computer Furniture Vehicles Total
machinery equipment and
fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April
1. 2014 130 839 284 444 170 & 1.833
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Additions (i3] 133 i 124 30 1 432
Acquisitions thraugh business

combination

{Refer to nate 2.3) - - - 2 1 - 3
Deletions - - (3] {13) (3) (1) (200
Translation difference (a) (3a) (13} (z2) (9 - i91)
Gross carrying wvalue as ni. : ; : : : :

March 31, 2015 250 940 aar 536 189 -] 2267
Accumulated depreciation as

of April 1. 2014 - (300) {175) (328} (117) (2) {822)
Accumulated  depreciation  on

acquired assets (Refer to note

2.3) - - - (1) - - (1)
Depreciation (3} (31) (42} (B3} i24) (1) {164)
:::EJ:HW P - - 2 1" 3 1 17
Translation difference - 14 8 16 6 {1} 43
Accumulated depreciation as

of March 31, 2015 (2 (317) {207) (385} {132) {3} {1.027)
Capital work-in-progress as of

March 31, 2015 230
Carrying value as of March 31,

2015 247 823 130 170 57 3 1,480
Capital work-in-progress as of

April 1. 2014 3085
Carrying value as of April 1.

2014 180 539 108 1186 53 4 1.316

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and eguipment for the year ended March 31,

2014:
{Dollars im millions)
Land Buildings Plant and ComputerFurnitureVehicles Total
machineryequipment and
fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2013 157 LEE] 23 347 147 5 1860
Additions. 48 136 13 125 a3 2 a7
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Deletions - - (1) (5) - (M
Translation difference {15} (70) (19 (23) (10 - {137
Gross carrying value as of March 31,

2014 190 Bag 284 444 170 6 1832
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1,

2013 - [278) (154} (240)  (103) (3) (775)
Depreciation - (49) (35) {109) (21} - {214)
Accumulated depreciation on deletions - - - 4 - 1 5
Translation difference - 24 14 17 T - 62
Accumulated depreciation as of March

31, 2014 - (300} (175} [328) {117} (2) (922)
Capital work-in-progress as of March 31,

2014 305
Carrying value as of March 31,2014 190 639 109 118 53 4 1318

Capltal work-In-progress as of April 1,
2013 306

Carrying value as of April 1, 2013 157 488 7 107 44 2 148

During the three months ended June 30, 2014, the management based on intemnal and extemnal technical
evaluation had changed the useful life of certain assets pamarily consisting of buildings and computers with
effect from Apnl 1, 2014. Accordingly, the useful ives of certain assets required a change from previous
estimate.

The depreciation expense is included in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income,

Carrying value of land includes $95 mallion and 599 million as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015,
respectively, towards deposits paid under certain lease-cum-sale agreements to acquee land, including
agreements where the company has an option to either purchase the properties or renew the lease on expiry
of the lease penod.

The contractual commitments for capital expenditure were $£224 million and £252 million as of March 31, 2016
and March 31, 2015, respectively.

2.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets
Following is @ summary of changes in the camying amount of goodwill:

{Dollars in millions)
As of
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March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Carrying value at the baginning : 495 360
Goodwill on Panaya acquisition {Refer to note 2.3) - 174
Goodwill on Kallidus d b a Skava acquisition (Refer to note 2.3) T -
Goodwill on Moah acguisition (Refer o note 2.3) 5 -
Translation differences (3) (39)
Carrying value at the end 568 495

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated fo the cash
generating units (CGU) or groups of CGUs, which are benefited from the synergies of the acquisition. The
Chief Operating Dedsion Maker reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the operating segment bewvel,
which is represented through groups of CGL s

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company reorgamzed some of its segments to enhance executive
customer relationships, improve focus of sales investments and increase management oversight. Consequent
to these intermnal reorganizations there were changes effected in the segments based on the “management
approach® as defined in IFRS 8, Operating Segments (Refer Note 2.19). Accordingly the goodwill has been
allocated to the new operating segments as at March 31, 2016,

The following table presents the allocation of goodwill to operating segments:
(Dollars i millions)
Sagments Az of

March 31, 2018

Financial services 128
Manufactunng 64
Retail, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics ar
Life Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance 99
Energy & utiliies, Communication and Services 1a

aa7
Operating segmeents without significant goodwall mn
Total 568

The entire goodwill relating to Infosys BPO's acquisition of McCamish has been allocated to the groups of
CGLU's, which are represented by the Life Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance segment.
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The goodwill relating to Infosys BPO, Infosys Lodestone, Portland, Panaya and Kalidus d.ba Skava
acquisitions has been allocated to the groups of CGUs, which are represented by the entity’s operating
segment.

The entire goodwill from Noah acquisition has been allocated to the group of CGLU's which is represented by
the Energy & Utikties, Communication & Semnices segment.

The following table gives the breakup of goodwill to operating segments as at March 31, 2015
{Dollars im millions)
Segments As of

March 31, 2015

Financial services 106
Manufacturing 105
Energy, communication and senices 51
Resources and utilities 23
Life sciences and healthcare 3
Insurance 58
Retail, consumer packaged goods, bogistics 76
Growth markets 45
Total 485

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. The fair
value of a CGU 15 determined based on the market capitakzaton. The value-in-use is determined based on
specific calculatbons. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections over a penod of five years, based
on financial budgets approved by management and am average of the range of each assumpton mentioned
below. As of March 31, 2016, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount.
The recoverable amount was computed based on the fair value being higher than value-in-use and the
carmmying amount of the CGLU was computed by allocating the net assets to operating segments for the purpose
of impairment testing. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

As at March 31, 2016 2015
Long term growth rate 810 8-10
Operating margins 17-20 17-20
Discount rate 14.2 13.9

The above discount rate s based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Company. These
estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,

2016:

{Dollars in millions)
CustomerSoftwareSub-coniractingintellectual LandMarketing OthersTotal

related related right related property use related

rights rights

relatedrelated
Gross carrying value as nf . .
April 1, 2015 T2 42 3 2 11 8 5 142
Additions throwgh  business
combinations (Refer to note
2.3) 45 | - - - L] 4 T6
Deletion - - - {2) - - - 12
Translation differences - (1) - - - - 1 -
Gross carrying value as of
March 31, 2016 117 62 3 - 1" 14 10 217
Accumulated arnnrliziﬁnn. i i . . . : :
as of April 1. 2016 (28) (2 {3) (2) (1) 1] (1) (41)
Amortization expense {20} (6] - - - nm {3) (30)
Deletion - - - 2 - - - 2
Translation differences - - - - = 1 - 1
Accumulated amortization
as of March 31, 2016 [48) (9 {3) = (1) 1] (4) (&8)
Carrying value as of March
3, 2016 [k 83 = = 10 g 6 149
Carrying value as of April 1,
2015 48 38 - - 10 3 4 102
Estimated Useful Life (in
years) 3-10 8-10 - - 50 3-10  3=5
Estimated Remaining
Useful Life (in years) 1=T 7=8 - - 45 2-9 25

Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,

20152
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{Dellars im millions)

CustomerSoftwareSub—contractingintellectual LandMarketingOthersTotal

related related right related property use related
rights rights
relatedrelated

Gross carrying value as of

April 1. 2014 64 & 3 2 11 5 1 92
Additions through business

combinations (Refer to note

23) 13 29 - - - | 4 59
Dredetion - {3) - - - - - {3
Translation differences (5) - - - - - - {5)
Gross carrying value as of

March 31, 2015 72 42 3 2 11 ] 5 143
Accumulated amortization

as of April 1, 2014 (21) (4) (3) (2) - 4 (1) (35)
Amortizabon expense (7 ) - - (1] i - (1)
Dhetetion - 3 - - - - - 3
Translation differences 2 - - - - - - 2
Accumulated amortization

as of March 31, 2015 (28) 3) (3) (2} (1) {5) (1) (41)
Carrying value as of Man:h. . - - . . . .
31,2015 46 33 - - 10 3 4 102
Carrying value as of April 1,. . - : : : : .
2014 43 2 - - 1 1 - b7
Estimated Useful Life (in

years) 310 10 a - 50 2-10 i
Estimated Remaining

Useful Life {in years) 28 10 5 =l 10 3

Following are the changes in the camying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,

2014

{Dollars in millions)
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related related  right related property use related
rights rights
relatedrelated

Gross carrying value as of

April 1, 2013 62 6 4 2 1 5 2 82
Additions - - - - - - - -
Translation differences 2 - {1} - - - 1 -
Grass carrying value as uf : : : : : ;
March 31, 2014 64 6 3 2 1 ] 1 92
Accumulated amortization

as of April 1. 2013 (14) (&) ) 2) - ) - (29)
Amortization expense (T (1) (1 e = @ (1) N2
Translation differences - 2 = - - 1) - 1
Accumulated amortization

as of March 31, 2014 [21) (4) (3) (2) - 4 (1) 35
Carrying value as of March

31, 2014 43 2 - - i1 1 - A&7
Carrying value as of April 1.- : . : : ; . :
2013 48 1 2 - 1 4 2 BB
Estimated Useful Life (in

years) 210 L] 3 - 50 2 -
Estimated Remalining

Useful Life {in years) 1-9 3 1 - 47 1 -

The aggregate amortization expense B included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Research and development expense recognized in net profit in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, for the years ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $108 million, $110 millicn and $147 million,

respectively.

2.7 Financial instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegones as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:
(Dallars in millions)
Leans andFinancialDerivative-HedgingAvailable Trade Total
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recelvables azzets/ Instruments for sale andecarrying
liabilities other wvalue |
at fair payables fair
value walue
through
prafit
and loss
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to a3 - & - 405
Mote to 2.1)
Available-for-sale  fimancial assets - -
- 284 284
(Refer to Mote 2.2)
Trade receivable 1,710 - - - 1,710
Unbilled revenue 457 - - - 457
Prepayments and other assels (Refer - - - o
o Mote 2 4) 303
[Derivative financial instruments - 17 - - 17
Total 7.495 17 284 - 116
Liabilities:
Trade payables £ 5 il L] 5&
Derivative financial instruments - 1 - - 1
Client deposits - - - 4 4
Employee benefit obhgations - - - 202 202
Other liabilties including contingent - i - o il
consideration (Refer to Note 2.9)
Total - ‘IBI —. 'I,EIIJ'I. 1.019

The carmying value and fair value of financial instruments by categones as of March 31, 2015 were as follows:

Loans and

Financial

Available Trade and

{Dollars in millions)

Total
receivables assets | for sale other  ecarrying
liabilities at payables wvalue | fair
fair value value
thraugh
profit and
loss
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Assets:

Cash and cash eguivalents (Refer to Note

to 2.1} 4,859 - - - 4 859
Available—for-sale financial assets (Refer to

Hote 2.2} - - 355 - 355
Trade receivable 1,554 - - - 1,554
Unbilled revenue 455 - - - 455
Prepayments and other assets (Refer to

Mote 2.4) 313 - - - 313
Derivative financial instruments - 16 - - 16
Total 7,481 16 358 L e
Liabilities:

Trade payables - - - 22 22
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Client deposits - - - 4 4
Employee benefit obligations - - - i 171
Other labdities (Refer to Note 2.9) - - - 782 Ta2
Total - - - 879 a79

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Cluoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inpuls other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assei or liability,
either dwectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. denved from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or lkabilibes that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and hiabilihes measured at fair value om a recurmng

basis as of March 31, 2016:

{Dollars in millions)

Az of March Fair value measurement at end of the
31, 2018 reporting peried using
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Available- for- sale fnancial  asset- 10 0 - -
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Investments in liguid mutual funds (Refer to

Mote 2.2}

Available- for- sale financial asset-

Investments in quoted debt securities

{Refer to Note 2.2) 257 &7 200 -
Available-  for-  sale  financial  assel-

Investments in eqguity and preference

securibes (Refer Mote 2_2) 14 - - 14
Avallable- for- sale financial asset- others
{Refer Note 2.2) 5 i i 5

Derivative financial instruments- gain on

outstanding foreign exchange forward and

opticn contracts 17 - 17 -
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments- loss on

outstanding foreign exchange forward and

oplion confracts 1 - 1 -
Liabilty towards contingent consideration
{Refer note 2.9)° 17 - - T

* Discounted £20 milion at 13. 7%

A one percentage pont change in the wnobservable imputs used in far valuation of the contngent
consideration does not have a significant impact in its value.

During the year ended March 31, 2016, quoted debt securities of $50 million were fransferred from Level 1 to
Level 2 of fair value hierarchy, since these were valued based on market observable imputs.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and habilites measured at fair value on a recumng
basis as of March 31, 2015:
{Dollars in millions)
As of March Fair value measurement at end of the

3. 2015 reporting pericd using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Available- for- sale  financial  asseb- 135 135 - -
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Investments in liguid mutual funds {Refer to

Mote 2.2}

Available- for- sale financial asset-

Investments in fixed maturity plan secunties

{Refer to Note 2.2) b - 5 -
Available-  for-  sale  financial  asset-

Investments in guoted debt secunbes

{Refer 1o Note 2.2) 215 ar 118 -
Derivative financial instruments- gain  on

outstanding foreign exchange forward and

option contracts 16 - 16 -
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments- loss on

outstanding foreign exchange forward and

opticn contracts - - - =

Income from financial assets or labdites that are not at fair value through profit or loss 15 as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014
Interest income on deposits and cerbificates of deposi
{Refer 1o Note 2.13) 385 430 356
Inecme from available-for-sale financial assets (Refer to
Note 2.13) 27 43 ar
412 473 383

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option confracts to
mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these
contracts s a bank. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.

The following table gives details with respect to cutstanding foreign exchange forward and option contracts:
{In milligns)

As of
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March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Forward contracts

In .S, dollars 510 16
In Eura 100 LT
In United Kingdom Pound Sterling 65 T
In Australian doflars 55 98
In Canadian dollars - 12
In Singapore dollars = i
In Swiss Franc 25 -

Option contracts
In LS. dollars 125 -

The Group recognized a net gain of 84 milion, a net gain of $85 milion and a net loss of $40 million on
dervative financial instruments for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respechvely, which are
included under other iIncome.

The foreign exchange forward and option contracts mature within 12 months, The table below analyzes the
dervative financ@al imstruments inlo relevant matunty groupings based on the remammmg perod as of the
balance sheet date:

{Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015
Mot later than one maonth 238 237
Later than one manth and not later than three months 516 605
Later than three months and not later than one year 167 155
'B11. 887

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activiies expose it to a vanety of financial nsks. market nsk, credit sk and liquidity risk. The
Group's primary focus & to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial perfformance. The primary market risk to the Group is foreign exchange risk,
The Group uses dervative financial instrumenis to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The
Group's exposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenstic of each customer and the
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concentration of nsk from the top few customers. The demographics of the customer including the defaull nisk

of the industry and country in which the customer operates also has an influence on credit nsk assessment.

Market risk

The Group operates mtemationally and a majpor portion of the business i ransacted in several currencies and
consequently the Group s exposed lo foreign exchange rnisk through ils sales and services in the United
States and elsewhere, and purchases from overseas suppliers in vanous foreign cumencies. The Group holds
derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foregn curfency exposiures. The exchange rate between the rupee and fofeign
cumrencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the fulure.
Consequently, the results of the Group's operations are affected as the rupee appreciates/depreciates against

these currencies.

The following table gives details in respect of the outstanding foreign exchange forward and option contracts:

{Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015
Aggregate amount of outstanding forward and option conftracts a1 aa7
Gain on outstanding forward and option contracts 17 16
Loss on cutstanding forward and option contracts 1 -

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial mstruments as of March 31, 2016
(Dollars in millions)

US.  Eure UnitedAustralian  Other  Total

dellars Kingdom  dellarscurrencies

Pound

Sterling
Cash and cash equivalents 170 25 30 26 " M2
Trade receivables 1,141 193 109 a0 105 1,638
Unbilled revenue 282 56 29 17 as 422
Other assets 14 ] 4 2 12 38
Trade payables (19 {11) (1) (1) {113 (53)
Client deposits (3) - = - (1) 4}
Accrued expenses {119} (23 (18) (5} (33 {198)
Employee benefit obligations (BT) (12) {7 125) (19 {150}
Other liabilities {159) (20) (5) (6) (32) {222)
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Net assets / (liabilities) 1.220 214 131 a8 150 1.813

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2015
{Dollars in millions)
u.s. Eure  UnitedAustralian Other Total

dollars Kingdem  dollarscurrencies

Paund

Sterling
Cash and cash equivalents 159 a T 19 BE 260
Trade receivables 1.075 166 87 75 o6 1,409
Unbilled revenue 274 53 20 16 40 403
Other assets 13 6 3 1 10 a2
Trade payables (9 (2) - - {10 (21)
Client deposits (3 = & = 1 )
Accrued expenses (120) (23) (13) (4) (26) {186)
Employee benefit obligations (7o) = (6] (21} (17 {123)
Other liabilities (122) (19) 4 (3} (101) {243)
Met assets | (labilities) 1.187 180 84 83 57 1,611

For the years ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, every percentage point depreciation / appreciation in
the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and the U5 dollar has affected the company’s incremental
operating margins by approximately 3.50%, 0.52% and 0.48%, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign cumency upon
conversion into functional currency, due to exchange rate fluctuabons between the previous reporting penod
and the cument reporting period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its abligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss, The
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from frade receivables amounting to
$1,710 million and $1,554 milon as of March 31, 2016 and March 21, 2015, respecinvely and unbilled
revenue amounting o $457 milion and $455 million as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively.
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are denived from revenue eamed from
cusiomers primarily located i the United States, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously monitofing the creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit
terms in the normal course of business.
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The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer and top
fwe customers:

in %)
Year ended March 31,
2018 2015 2014
Revenue from top customer a8 a3 is
Revenue from top five customers 138 13.5 14.4

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equvalents, available-for-sale financial assets and investment in cerbficates of deposit are
neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash equivalents include deposits with banks and financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by intermational and domestic credit rating agencies. Awvailable-for-sale
financial assets include investment in liquid mutual fund units, quoted dett securities and unguoted equity and
preference secuntes. Cerificates of deposit represent funds deposited at a bank for a specified time peniod.
Investment in guoted debt secunties represents the investments made in debt secunties issued by
government and quasi government organizations. Of the total trade receivables, $1 258 million and %1174
milion as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively, were neither past due nor impaired.

There s no other class of financial assets that is not past due but impaired excepl for trade receivables of $2
milion and $4 million as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The Group's credit penod generally ranges from 30-60 days. The age analysis of the trade receivables have

been considered from the due date. The age wise break up of frade receivables, net of allowances of $42
milion and $55 millicn as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively that are past due, is given

below:

{Dollars in millions)

Peried (in days) As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Less than 30 314 263
3 -60 " 56
6190 46 14
More than 90 21 48
452 g0

248/303

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



The reversal of provision for doubtful trade receivables for the year ended March 31, 2016 is 7 millicn. The
provesions for doubtful trade recevables for the year ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $20 millon and
$23 million, respectivehy.

The movement in the provisions for doubiful trade recervables is as follows:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
201 E. 201 E. 2014
Balance at the beginning 58 36 17
Translation differences {3 i) -
Provisions for doubtful trade receivables {T) 29 23
Trade recevables written off {5} 2) 4)
Balance at the end 44 5 a6

Liquidity risk

As of March 31, 2016, the Group had a working capital of $5 804 million including cash and cash equivalents
of 54,935 million and curent available-for-sale financial assets of $11 million. As of March 31, 2015, the
Group had a working capital of $5,731 milkon including cash and cash equivalents of $4,859 milkon, current
available-for-sale financial assets of $140 million_

As of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the oulstanding employee benefit obligations were $202 million
and $171 milkion, respectively, which have been substantially funded. Further, as of March 31, 2016 and
March 31, 2015, the group had no outstanding bank bomowings. Accordingly, no liguidity risk is perceived.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2016
{Dollars n millions)

Particulars Lessthan1 1-2Zyears 2-4years 4-7years Total
year
Trade payables 58 - - - 58
Client deposits 4 - - = 4
Other liabilities {excluding liabilities towards
T3z 4 1 - 7a7
acquisition - Refer to note 2.9)
Liability towards acquisitions on  an
undiscounted basis (including contingent 13 7 - - 20
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consideration) - (Refer to Note 2.9)

The table below provides detals regarding the contractual matwnities of significant financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2015:

{Dollars in millions)

Particulars Lessthan1 1-Zyears 2<4years 4-T years Total
year

Trade payables 22 - - - 22

Client deposits 4 - - - 4

Oiher hiabilities (excluding liabilities towards

acquisition and incentive accruals - Refer to

note 2.9} 704 - - - 704
Liability towards acquisiions on  an
undizcounted basis (Refer to Note 2.9) 24 - - - B4

As of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the Group had outstanding financial guarantees of $8 million and
57 million, respectively towards leased premises. These financial guarantees can be invoked upon breach of
any term of the lease agreement. To the Group's knowledge there has been no breach of any term of the
lease agreement as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The group offsets a financial asset and a financial liabdity when it currently has a legally enforceable right Lo
sel off the recognized amounts and the group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the Rability simultaneocushy.

The following table provides quantitative information about offsetting of denvative financial assets and
dervative financial liabilities:

{Dollars in millions)

As of As of

March 31, 2016 Mareh 31, 2015
Derivative  Derivative Derivative  Derivative
financial financial financial fimancial
asset liability asszet liability
Gross amount of recognized financial asset/lability 18 (2) 17 (1)
Amount set off (1) 1 (1) 1
Net amount presented in balance sheet . i7 . (1) . 19: -
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2_8 Provisions

Provisions comprise the following:
{Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Provision for post sales client support and other provisions i 7
7 T

Provision for post sales client support and other provisions represents costs associated with providing sales

support senices which are accrued at the time of recognition of revenues and are expected to be utilized over

a penod of & months o 1 year. The movement n the provision for post sales chent support and other
provisions is as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2016
Balance at the beginning T
Translation differences 1
Provision recognized / (reversed) 16
Provision utilized (17
Balance at the end 7

Provesion for post sales chent support and other provissons s incleded in cost of sales in the consobdated

statement of comprehensive income.

As of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, claims against the company, nol acknowledged as debls, net of
amounts paid (excluding demands from Indian income tax authonties- Refer to Mote 2.16) amounted to $42
million (T277 crore) and $42 million (261 crore), respectively

2.9 Other liabilities

Other liabilities compnse the following:
{Dedlars in millions)
As of
March 31..

March 31, 2015
2016
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Current

Accrued compensation to employess
Accrued expenses
Withholding taxes payable
Retainage

Liabilities of controfled trusts

Accrued gratuity

Liatilty towards acquisition of business

Lisability towards contingent consideration (Refer note 2.3)
Others

L]

Hen-current

Liability towards contingent consideration (Refer note 2.3)
Accrued compensation to employees

Deferred income - government grant on land use rights *

Financial kabilittes included in ather liabilities

Financial liability towards acguisitions on an undicounted basis (including

contingent consideration) - Refer note 2.3

U2 337
3 318
196 145
12 8
25 28
i 1
- 78
12
22 12
840 927
8
17 8
967 935
754 782
20 84

M Mon-financial abililies

Accrued expenses primarily relate to cost of technical sub-contractors, telecommunication charges, legal and
professional charges, brand bullding expenses, overseas travel expenses and office maintenance. Others

include unpaid dividend balances and capital creditors.,

2.10 Expenses by nature

{Dodlars i millions)

Year ended March 31,
2016 2016 2014
Employee benefit costs § 236 4 BE2 4 T46
Deferred purchase price pertaining to acquisiton (Refer to
Note 2.3) 23 41 M
Depreciation and amortization charges (Refer to Note 2.5
and 2.6) 222 175 226
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Travelling costs

Consultancy and professional charges
Rates and taxes

Cost of software packages for own use
Third party items bought for service delivery to chients
Communication costs

Cost of technical sub-contractors

Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance

Commission to non-whole time directors
Branding and marketing expenses
Provision for post-sales client support

Provisions for doubtful frade receivables {Refer to Mote 2.T)

Operating lease payments (Refer to Note 2.14)
Insurance charges

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility
Others (Refer to Nate 2.20)

Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses and

administrative expenses

345 297 280
112 68 83
17 21 17
13 139 129
81 a1 32
68 82 T2
537 354 322
33 36 36
160 124 95
1 2 2
44 26 22
1 5] 8
7 29 23
55 50 53
9 ] g
33 42 L
ET 29 84
7.126 64562 B6.270

2.11 Employee benefits

2.11.1 Gratuity

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the Group's

financial statements as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015:

{Dollars in millions)

As of

Mareh 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Change in benefit ebligations

Benefit obhgations at the beginning

Service cost

Interest expense

Remeasurements - Actuanal losses / {gains)
Benefits paid

Translation differences
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Benefit obligations at the end 142 131
Change in plan assets .

Fanr value of plan assels at the beginming 134 120
Imterest Income 10 1
Remeasurements — Heturns on plan assels excluding amounts included in

interest income 1 1
Contnbubions 17 26
Benefits paid {11} (19)
Translation differences (8) (5
Fair value of plan assets at the end 143 134
Funded status 1 3
Prepaid gratuity benefit 1 4
Accrued gratuity - {1}

Net gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 comprises the following components:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2015 2014
Service cost 18 16 16
Net mterest on the net defined benefit liabiity / asset {1 {1 -
Net gratuity cost 7 15 16

Amount for the fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014 recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2015 2014
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability .f 5 :
asset
Actuarial (gains) / bosses 3 1 1
{Return) / loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in i P P
the net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset
Net gratuity cost 2 10 -
{Dollars im millions)
Year ended March 31,
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2016 2016 2014

{Gain) ! less from change in demographic assumptions - - 3
{Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions - 9 4)
o 9 {1

The gratuity cost recognized in net profit in the statement of comprehensive income apportioned behween cost
of sales, selling and marketing expenses and admnisirative expenses on the basis of direct employee cost is
as follows:
(Dollars in millions)
Year ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014

Cost of sales 15 13 14
Selling and marketing expenses 1 1 1
Adminisirative expenses 1 1 1
17 15 16

The weighted-average assumptions used o determine benefit obligations as of March 31, 2016 and March 31,

2015 are set out below:

As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Discount rate T.8% T.8%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 8.0% 8.0%

The weighted-average assumpbons used to determine net pericdic benefit cost for the year ended March 31,
20162015 and 2014 are set oul below:

Year ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 7.8% 9.2% &8.0%
Weghtled average rate of increase in compensation levels 8.0% 8.0% T 3%
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation G.4 years 6.4 years 8 years
Discount rate In India, the market for high qualty corporate bonds being not developed, the yield of

government bonds is considered as the discount rate. The tenure has been considered
taking inta account the past long-term trend of employees’ average remaining service
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life which reflects the average estmated term of the pest- employment benefit
obbgations.
Weighted average The average rale of increase in compensation levels is determined by the Company,
rale of mmcrease in considering factors such as, the Company's past compensation revision trends and

compensation kevels management's estimate of future salary increases.

Altrition rate Aftrition rate considered is the management's estimate based on the past long-term
trend of employee turmnever in the Company.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign
defined benefit gratuity plans.

The company confributes all ascertained labilibes towards gratuity to the Infosys Employees' Gratuity Fund
Trust. In case of Infosys BPO and EdgeVerve, confributions are made to the Infosys BPFO Employees’ Gratuity
Fund Trust and EdgeVerve Systems Limited Gratuity Fund Trust, respectively. Trustees administer
contributions made to the trusts. As of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the plan assets have been
primarily invested in insurer managed funds,

Actual return on assels for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was 511 milbon, $12 million and
$9 million, respectively

As of March 31, 2018, every percentage point increase | decrease in discount rate will affect the company’s
gratuity benefit chligation by approximately 7 million.

As aof March 31, 2016, every percenfage point increase | decrease in weighted average rate of increase in
compensation levels will affect the company's gratuity benefit obligation by approximately $6 million

The Group expects o contnbute $15 millon to the gratuity trusts during the fiscal 2017

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

{Dollars m millions)

Within 1 year . 22
1.2 vyear 22
2 - dyear 24
3 -4 year 25
4 - 5year 27
5 = 10 years 137
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Sensitivity for significant actuanal assumptions is computed by vanying one actuarial assumption used for the
valuation of the defined benefit obbgation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumpbons

constant.

Assumptions regarding fulure mortality experence are sel in accordance with the published statistics by the
Life Insurance Corperabon of India.

2.11.2 Superannuation

The company contfibuted $36 million, $35 millien and $33 million to the superannuation plan during the year
ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Superannuation contributions have been apportioned between cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses
and administrative expenses on the bases of direct employee cost as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2015 2014
Cost of sales 32 kS| 30
Selling and marketing expenses 3 3 2
Administrative expenses 1 1 1
38 35 33

2.11.3 Provident fund

Infosys has an obligation to fund any shaortfall on the yield of the trust's investiments over the administerad
nterest rates on an annual basis. These administered rates are determined annually predominanthy
considenng the social rather than economic factors and in most cases the aclual return eamed by the
company has been higher in the past years. The actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund liabilities
on the basis of guidance issued by Actuanal Society of India and based on the below provided assumptions
there i no shortfall as at March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively.

The details of fund and plan asset position are given below:
{Dodlars in millions)

As of
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Plan assets at perod end, at fair value 575 466
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Present value of benefit obligation at perod end 575 466

Asset recognized in balance sheet H -

The plan assets have been primarily invested in govermnment securities.

Assumplions used in determining the present value obligation of the interesi rate guaraniee under the
Deterministic Approach:

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015
Govemment of India (GOI) bond yield : 78% 78%
Remaining term of maturity (in years) T years T years
Expected guaranteed interest rate ~ First Year 8.8% B.8%
Thereafter BE% BE%

The Group contributed $63 milion, $56 million and %48 million to the provident fund during the year ended
Mareh 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Prowvident fund contributions have been apportioned between cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses
and administrative expenses on the basis of direct employee cost as follows:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2015 2014
Cost of sakes 56 50 43
Selsng and markeling expenses 5 4 3
Administrative expenses 2 2 2
63 56 48

2.11.4 Employee benefit costs include:
{Dellars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
201 E. 201 5. 2014
Salaries and bonus * 5,120 4 756 4 549
Defined contribution plans 46 43 32
Defined benefit plans 70 63 59
5,236 4862 4,748
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*  Includes stock compensalion expense of 31 million and Jess than $1 million for the year ended March 31,
2016 and March 31, 2015 respechively

The gratuity and provident plans are applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there
are no other foresgn defined benefi plans.

The employee benefit cost is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income:;

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2018 2014
Cost of sabes 4 627 4299 4232
Seling and markeling expenses 403 389 356
Administrative expenses 2086 174 168
ﬁ,nﬁl 4.8'52I 4,748

2.12 Equity

Share capital and share premium

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T5/-. The
Company has allotted 574,236 168 fully paid-up equity shares of face value ¥5/- each during the three
manths ended December 31, 2014 pursuant to a bonus issue approved by the shareholders through postal
ballot. Further during the three months ended June 30, 2015 the Company has allotted 114,84, 72,332 fully
paid-up shares of face value ¥5/- each pursuant to bonus issue approved by the shareholders through postal
ballot. The book closure date fixed by the Board was June 17, 2015, Bonus share of one equity share for
every equity share held, and a stock dividend of one American Depositary Share (ADS) for every ADS held,
respectively, has been allotted. Consequently, the rabio of eguity shares undertying the ADSs held by an
Amernican Depositary Receipt holder remains unchanged. Options granted under the stock option plan have
been adjusted for bonus shares. 11,323 576 and 5,667 200 shares were held by controlled trust, as of March
31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively

The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as share premium. Addionally,

share-based compensation recognized in net profit in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
credited to share premium. Amounts have been utlized for bonus issue from share premium account
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Retained sarmnings

Retained earmngs represent the amount of accumulated eamings of the Group.

Other Reserves

The Special Economic Zone Re-investment reserve has been created out of the profit of the eligible SEZ unit
in terms of the provisions of Sec 10AA(T Y} of Income Tax Act, 1961, The reserve should be utilized by the
Company for acquiring new plant and machinery for the purpose of its business in terms of the provisions of
the Sec 10A4(2) of the Income Tax Acl, 1961

Other components of equity

Other components of equity consist of currency translation, fair value changes on available-for-sale financial
assets, remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset and changes in fair valee of dervatives
designated as cash flow hedges.

The company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and
to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value, In order to maintain or achieve
an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capatal to
shareholders, [ssue new shares of buy back ssued shares. Az of March 31, 2016, the company had only one
dass of equity shares and had no debt. Consequent fo the above capital structure, there are no extermnally
imposed capital requirements

The reghts of equity sharehobders are set out below.

2.12.1 Voting

Each holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote per share. The equity shares represented by American
Depositary Shares (ADS) carry similar nghts to voling and dividends as the other equity shares, Each ADS

represents one underlying equity share.

2.12.2 Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The remittance of dividends outside India is
governed by Indian law on foreign exchange and s subject o applicable distribution taxes.
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The Board has increased dividend pay-out ratio from up to 40% to up to 50% of post-tax consalidated profits
effective fiscal 2015.

The amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders for the year ended March
31, 2016 includes final dividend for fiscal 2015 of ¥20 50/ per equity share (30 47 per equity share) (not
adjusted for June 17, 2015 bonus ssue) and an intenm dividend for fiscal 2016 of €10/ per equity share
{80.15 per equity share).

The amount of per share dniadend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders for the year ended March
3, 2015 and 2014 was $1.21 (F73.00) (not adjusted for bonus issue) and $0.02 B47.00) (not adjusted for
bonus issue), respectively.

The Board of Directors, in their meeting on Apnl 15, 2016, proposed a final dividend of ¥14.25 per equity
share (approximately $0.22 per equity share). The proposal is subject to approval of the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on June 18, 2016 and if approved, would result in a cash outflow of
approximately $592 million (excluding dividend pasd on treasury shares), including corporate dvidend tax

2.12.3 Liquidatien

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of shares shall be entibed to receive any of the
remaining assets of the company, after distibution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential
amounts exist currently, other than the amounts held by imevocable controlled trusts, The amount distributed

will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. For imevocable controlled frusts,
the corpus would be settled in favor of the beneficianes.

2.12.4 Share options

There are no voting, dividend or Bquidation nights to the holders of options issued under the company's share
option plans.

2.13 Other income

Other income consists of the following:
(Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014
Interest income on deposits and certificates of deposit ass 430 358
Exchange gains / (losses) on forward and options contracts 4 85 (40)
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Exchange gains / (losses) on translation of other assets and

21 n a

Income from availlable-for-sale financial assets 27 43 af
Others 39 9 a
4TE. 560 440

2.14 Operating leases

The Group has vanous operating leases, mainly for office buildings, that are renewable on a periodic basis,
Rental expense for operating leases was $55 milion, S50 million and 53 million for fiscal 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

The schedule of future minimum rental payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases s sel out
below:
(Dollars in millons)

As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Within one year of the balance sheet date : 56 27
Due in a penod between one year and five years 132 63
Due after five years 67 "

A majority of the group’s operating lease arangements extend up 1o a maximum of ten years from their
respective dates of inception, and relate to rented overseas premises. Some of these lease agreements

contain a prnce escalabion clause.

2.15 Employees" Stock Option Plans [ESOP)

2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the 2015 Plan): The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
issued the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
{'SEBI Regulations') which replaced the SEB|I ESOP Guidefines, 1999, The 2011 Plan (as explained below)
wias required to be amended and restaled in accordance with the SEBI Regulations. Consequenily, to effect
this chamge and o further introduce stock options/ADR's and other stock meentives, the Company put forth
the 2015 Stock Incenfive Compensation Plan (the 2015 Plan) for approval to the shareholders of the
Company. Pursuant to the approval by the shareholders through postal ballot which ended on March 31, 2016,
the Board of Directors have been authonsed to introduce, offer, Bsue and allot share-based incentives 1o
eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries under the 2015 Plan. The maximum number of shares
under the 2015 plan shall not exceed 24 038 B33 equity shares (this includes 11,223 576 equity shares which
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are currently held by the Trust towards the 2011 Plan). 17 038 883 equity shares will be issued as RSUs at
par value and 7,000,000 equity shares will be issued as stock options at market price. These instruments wall
viest over a penod of 4 years and the Company expects o grant the instruments under the 2015 Plan over the
penod of 4 1o T years.

2011 RSU Plan (the 2011 Plan): The Company had a 2011 RSU Plan which provided for the grant of
restricted stock units (RSUs) to eligible employees of the Company. The Board of Directors recommended the
establishment of the 2011 Plan fo the shareholders om August 30, 2011 and the shareholders approved the
recommendation of the Board of Directors on October 17, 2011 through a postal ballot. The maximum
aggregate number of shares that may be awarded under the plan was 11,234 400 (adjusted for bonus issues)
and the plan was expecied to continue in effect for a term of 10 years from the date of initial grant under the
plan, During the year ended March 31, 2015, the company made a grant of 108,268 restricted stock units
(adpsted for bonus issues) to Dr. Vishal Sikka, Chief Executive Office and Managing Director. The Board in
its meeting held on June 22, 2015, on recommendation of Momination and Remuneration Committee, further
granted 1,24 081 RSUis to Dr. Vishal Sikka, These RSUs are vesting over a peniod of four years from the date
of the grant in the proportions specified n the award agreement. The RSUs will vest subject to achevement of
ceftain key performance indicators as set forth in the award agreement for each applicable year of the vesting
tranche and continued employment through each vesting date. Further the Company has earmarked 100,000
equity shares for welfare activities of the employees, approved by the shareholders through postal ballot
which ended on March 31, 2016 The equity shares currently hedd under this plan, Le. 11,223 576 equity
shares (this includes the aggregate number of equity shares that may be awarded under the 2011 Plan as
reduced by 10,824 equity shares already exercised by Dr. Vishal Sikka and 100,000 equity shares which have
been earmarked for welfare activibes of the employees) have been subsumed under the 2015 Plan.

Further, the award granted to Dr. Vishal Sikka on June 22, 2015 was modified by the Momination and
remuneration committee on Aprl 14, 2016, There s no modiication or change n the total number of RSUs
granted or the vesting penod {(which is four years). The modiications refate to the cniteria of vesting for each
of the years. Based on the modification, the first tranche of the RSUs will vest subject to achievement of
certain key performance indicators for the year ended March 31, 2018, Subsequent vesting of RSU's for each
of the remaining years would be subject to continued employment.

The activity in the 2011 Plan duning the year ended March 31, 20186 is set out below:

© Year ended March 31, 2016
Shares arising Weighted
out of options average

exercise price

2011 Plan:
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Qutstanding at the beginning”
Granted

Forfeited and expired
Exercised*

Qutstanding at the end
Exercizable at the end

108,268 .08
124 061 008

10,824 Q.08
221,505 0.08

* Adjusted for bonus issue. (Refer fo nofe 2.12)

The weighted average share price of options exercised under the 2011 Plan en the date of exercise was

B16/4-

The activity in the 2011 Plan during the year ended March 21, 2015 is set out below:

Year ended March 31, 2015
Shares arising Weighted
out of options average

exercise price

2011 Plan:

Qutstanding at the beginning
Granted*

Forfeited and expired
Exercised

Outstanding at the end

Exercizable at the end

* Adjusted for bonus issue. (Refer to nofe 2.12)

The weighted average remaining contractual life of RSUs outstanding as of March 31, 2016 and March 31,
2015 under the 2011 Plan, was 1.98 years and 2 39 years respectively

The expected termn of the RSU is estimated based on the vestng term and contractual term of the RSU, as
well as expected exercise behavior of the employes who receives the RSU. Expected wvolatility during the
expected term of the RSU is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the company's
publicly traded equity shares dunng a penod equivalent to the expected term of the RSU.
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The fair value of each RSU is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton model with the
following assumplions:

Particulars " Fiscal 2016  Fiscal 2015
Grant Date 2015 21Aug-14
Weighted average share price (3)* 16 58
Exercise price ($) 0.08 0.08
Expected volatilty (%) 28-36 30-37
Expected life of the option (years) 1-4 1-4
Expected dividends (%) 243 184
Risk-free interest rate (%) T7-8 -9
Weighted average fair value as on grant date ($) * 15 13

* Dafa for Fiscal 2015 is nof adjusted for bonus issues

During the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the company recorded an employee stock
compensation expense of 31 million and less than 51 milion, respectvely in the statement of comprehensive
income

2.16 Income taxes

Income tax expense n the consohdated statement of comprehensive income comprises:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
Z'IME. 2EI1$. 2014

Current taxes - .
Domestic taxes G642 511 585
Forewgn taxes 167 a2 124

B09 793 To8
Deferred taxes
Domestic taxes 3 B (29)
Foreign taxes {13) B 12)

{10} 12 [41)
Income tax expense 789 805 GE8

Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 includes reversals (net of provisions)
of 847 million, $26 million and $4 million, respectively, peraining 0 earlier penods.
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The revision in the useful life of assets held at Apnl 1, 2014 has resulted n a decrease in deferred tax credit
by £29 million for the year ended March 31, 2015, (Refer to Mote 2.5)

Entire deferred income tax for fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014 relates to origination and reversal of temporary
differences.

A deferred tax liability of $1 million, a reversal of deferred tax asset of $2 million and a reversal of deferred tax
liability of $2 million relating to available-for-sale financial assets has been recognized in other comprehensive
income duning fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively_

The company, being a resident in India as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, is required to pay
taxes in India on the global income In accordance with the provisions of Section & of the Indian Income Tax
Act, 1961, which s reflected as domeshbic taxes. The geographical segment disclosures on revenue i note
2.19.2 are based on the location of customers and do not reflect the geographies where the actual delwery or
revenue-related efforis occur. The mcome on which domestc taxes are imposed are not resiricted to the
income generated from the “India® geographic segment As such, amounts applicable o domestic income
taxes and foreign income taxes will not necessarily comelate to the proportion of revenue generated from India
and other geographical segments as per the geographic segment disclosure set forth in note 2.18.2

A reconcilation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
to the income before income faxes is summarnzed below:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

zﬂiﬁl 2015. 2014
Profit before income taxes 2 851 2,818 2418
Enacted tax rates in India ME1% 33.95% 33.99%
Computed expected tax expense agr 458
Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes (26:8) (273) {273)
Overseas taxes 108 134 89
Tax reversals, overseas and domestic (net) (47) (26) ()
Effect of exempt non-operating income {13) (15) (13)
Effect of unrecognized deferred tax assels 9 T 1
Effect of differential overseas tax rates 1 () 1
Effect of non-deductible expenses a0 34 47
Taxes on dividend received from subsidiary - 1 1
Temporary difference related to branch profits tax - - )]
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Additional deduction on research and development expense (9) (8 {15)
Oithers - - -
Income tax expense T899 805 668

The applicable Indian corporate stalutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is
34 61%, 33.99% and 33.99%, respectively. The increase in the corporate statutory tax rate to 34.61% is
consequent to changes made in the Finance Act, 2015,

During the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the group has claimed weighted tax deduction on eligible
research and development expenditures based on the approval received from Department of Scientfic and
Industrial Research (DSIR) on Movember 23, 2011 which has been renewed effective April 2014, The
weighted tax deduction is equal to 200% of such expenditures incurred.

The: foreign tax expense is due to income taxes payable overseas, principally in the United States. In India,
the company has benefited from certain tax mcentives that the Government of India had provided for export of
software from the units registered under the Software Technology Parks Scheme (STP) and the company
conbnues o benefit from certamn tax incentrves for the units registered under the Special Economic Zones Act,
2005 (SEZ). However, the income tax incentives provided by the Govermnment of India for STP units have
expired, and income from all our STP units are now taxable. SEZ units which began the provision of services
on or after April 1, 2005 are ebgble for a deduchon of 100 percent of profils or gains derived from the export
of services for the first five years from the financial year in which the unit commenced the provision of services
and 50 percent of such profits or gains for a further five years. Up to 50% of such profits or gains is also
available for a further five years subject to creation of a Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve out of
the profit of the eligible SEZ units and utilization of such reserve by the Company for acquinng new plant and
machinery for the purpose of its business as per the  provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, (Refer to Other
Reserves under note 2,12 Equity).

As a result of these tax incentives, a porton of the company's pre-tax income has not been subject to tax in
recent years. These tax incentives resulted in a decrease in our income tax expense of $268 million, $273
millkon and 5273 milhon for the year ended March 21, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, compared to the tax
amounts that we estimate we would have been required to pay if these incenfives had not been available. The
per share effect of these tax incentives computed based on both basic and diluted weighted average number
of equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was 3012 each. The basic and diluted
weighted average number of equity shares have been adjusted for bonus issue. (Refer to Note 2.12)

The company is subject to a 15% Branch Profit Tax (BFT) in the United States to the extent its LS, branch's

net profit durng the year is greater than the increase in the net assets of the U.S. branch during the fiscal year,
computed in accordance with the Internal Revenwe Code. As of March 31, 2016, Infosys’ US. branch net
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assets amounted (o approximately 3771 million. As of March 31, 2016, the Company has provided for branch
profit tax of $51 mullion for its U_S branch, as the company estimates that these branch profits are expected to
be distributed in the foreseeable fulune.

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognized on temporary differences amounting to $745 million
and $615 milon as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively, associated wilth investrments in
subsidianes and branches as it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future:

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilites as of March 31, 2016
and March 31, 2015:

As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2013
Income fax assets 789 654
Current income tax liabilities (515) {451)
Net current income tax assets | (liabilitles) at the end 274 203

The gross movement in the curent income tax asset / (liability) for fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:
{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2015 2014
Met current income tax asset ! {liability) at the beginning 203 (111) (44)
Additions through business combination - - -
Translation differences {12} 3 4
Income tax paid 892 1,102 638
Current income tax expense (Refer to Note 2.16) (B0 {793) {T09)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - 2 -
Net current income tax asset | (liability) at the end 274 203 {111}

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are as follows;
{Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Deferred income tax assets
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Property, plant and equipment 7 aa
Computer software ] 8
Trade receivables 13 17
Compensated absences 59 48
Accrued compensation o employees 10 &
Post sales clients support 12 12
Ofthers 8 L
Total deferred income tax assets 1:'1?. 138
Deferred income tax llabilities

Tempaorary diffierence related to branch profits {51} {51)
Intangible assets (38} (25)
Available for sale financial assets (1) -
Others {5 -
Total deferred income tax liabilities 95) (78)
Deferred income tax assets after set off 81 BS
Deferred income tax liabilities after set off (39) (25)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax labiies have been offset wherever the group has a
legally enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against curment income tax liabilities and where
the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax habilites relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities recoverable within and after 12 months are
as follows:
{Dollars i millions)
As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015

Deferred income tax assets o be recovered after 12 months 61 56
[Deferred income lax assets lo be recovered within 12 months f-] a0
Total deferred income tax aszets 137 136
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months {B8) (59}
[Dreferred income lax liabilities 1o be settled within 12 months 27) (17
Total deferred income tax liabilities [551. (78)

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or
all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ufimate realization of deferred income fax
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assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the perods in which the tempaorary
differences become deductible. Managemenl considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax
liabilities, projected future taxable ncome and tax planning strategies in making this assesament. Based on
the level of historcal taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the
deferred income tax assels are deductble, management bebeves that the group will realize the benefits of
those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are
reduced.

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for fzcal 2016, 2015 and 2014 i as follows:
{Dellars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2015 2014
Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning 60 ag 71
Additions through business combination (Refer to note 2.3) (20) [ 186) -
Translation differences g ] = (15)
Credits/{Charge) relating to temporary differences (Refer to
note 2,16) 10 (12) 41
Temporary difference on available-for-sale financial asseis (1) (2) 2
Net deferred income tax asset at the end 42 &0 89

The credits relating to temporary differences dunng fiscal 2016 are pamanly on account of acerued
compensation 1o employees and compensated absences partially offset by reversal of credits pertaining to
property plant and equipment and trade receivables. The charge relating to temporary differences durnng fiscal
2015 are primanly on account of property, plant and equipment, post sales chent support, available for sale
fimancial assets, minimum altemate tax pariially offset by compensated absences and trade receivables. The
credits relating to temporary differences dunng fiscal 2014 are pnmarily on account of compensated absences,
trade receivables, accrued compensation to employess, post sales client support and property, plant and
equipment,

Pursuant o the enacted changes in the Indian Income Tax Laws effective Apnl 1, 2007, the provisions of
Mimimum Alternate Tax (MAT) had been extended to ncome of STP units. Further, the Fmance Act, 2011,
which became effective Apnl 1, 2011, extended MAT to SEZ units and SEZ developer units. Infosys Limited
and Infosys BPO had calculated its tax liability for curment domestic taxes after considering MAT. The excess
fax pad under MAT provisions being over and above normal tax liability has been fully set off against normal
tax liabiliies of the subsequent years. Consequently the deferred income tax asset pertaining to MAT credit is
Nil as of March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015
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As of March 31, 2016, claams against the group not acknowledged as debts from the Indian Income tax
authonties net of amount paid to statutory authornties of $662 million (T4,383 crore) amounted to $1 milion (T
T erore).

As of March 31, 2015, claims against the group not acknowledged as debts from the Indian Income tax
authonbes net of amount pad (o statulery authonbes of 3571 millien (€3 568 crore) amounted to less than §1
million (B3 crore).

Payment of $662 milllon (¥4,383 crore) includes demands from the Indian Income tax authorities of $624
million (T4.135 crore), ncluding interest of $185 million (1,224 crore) upon completion of their tax
assessment for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, $138 million (T913 crores)
paid during the year ended 31st March 2016 consequent to demand from tax authonties in India for fiscal
2011 towards denial of certain tax benefits. The company has filed an appeal with the income tax appellate
authorifies.

Demand for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 incledes disallowance of a portion of the deduchon
damed by the company under Sechon 104 of the income Tax Act as delermined by the ratio of export
tumover to total tumover. The disallowance arose from certain expenses incumed in foreign cumency being
reduced from export tumover but not reduced from total turmover. Demand for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008, fiscal
2004, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 also includes disallowance of portion of profit eamed outside India from the
STP units under section 104 of the Income Tax Act and disallowance of profits eamed from SEZ units under
section 10AA of the Income Tax Act. The matters for fiscal 2007, fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 are pending
before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) Bangalore. The matter for fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 is
pending before Hon'ble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) Bangalore. The company is contesting the
demand and the management including its tax advisors believes that its posibon will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. The management believes that the ulimate cutcome of these proceedings will not have a
matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

217 Earnings per equity share

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted eamings per
equity share:

Year ended March 31,

2018 2018 2014
Basic eamings per eguity share - weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding " 2.285616,160 2285610264 2285 610,264
Effect of dilutive common equivalent shares - share oplions 102,734 32676
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outstanding =
Diluted earnings per equity share - weighted average number
of equity shares and common equivalent shares outstanding 2,285 718 894 2 285 642 940 2 285 610,264

M excludes treaswy shares
* adjusted for bonus shares. Refer fo note 2.12

For the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, there were no outstanding options to purchase equity
shares which had an ant-dilutive effect.

2.1B Related party transactions

List of subsidiaries:

Particulars Country Holding as of

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2015
Infosys BPO Limited {Infosys BPO) India 99.98% 99.98%
Infosys Technologies (China) Co Lid (Infosys China) China 100% 100%
Infosys Technologies 5. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexica)  Mexico 100% 100%
Infosys Technologies {Sweden) AB. {Infosys Sweden) Sweden 100% 100%
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys
Shanghai) China 100% 100%
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil 100% 100%
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) LS. 100% 100%
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) Us. 100% 100%
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.ro(formerly Infosys Czech
BPOs.r o) Republic 99 95% 09.98%
Infosys Poland Sp 200 (lormerly Infosys BPO (Poland) Sp
Zo.o)" Poland 09 08% 99.98%
Infosys BFO SDE RL. DECV ™™ Mexico - =
Infosys MeCamish Systems LLC ™ us. 99 98% 99 .98%
Portiand Group Pry Lud™ Austraka 99.98% 99.94%
Poriland Procurement Services Phy Ltd™ Australia - -
Infosys BPO Amencas LLC ™™ us o i
Infosys  Technologies {(Australia) Pty Limited (Infosys
Australia) @ Australia 100% 100%
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) ™ India 100% 100%
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) (formerly Switzerland 100% 100%
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Lodestone Holding AG)

Lodestone Management Consuliants Inc, ™ us.
Infosys Management Consultants Pty Limited (formerly

Lodestone Management Consultants Pty Limited) ™ Australia
Infosys Consuling AG (formery Lodestone Managemeni
Consultants AG) ™ Switzerland
Lodestane Augmentis AG &'™ Switzerland
Lodestone GmbH (formedy Hafner Bauer & Odman GmbH)

3 Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) 5.4 Belgium
Infosys  Consuling  GmbH {lormerdy  Lodestone
Management Consultants GmbH]™ Germany
Infosys  Consulting Pte Lid.  (formerly  Lodestone
Management Consultants Pte Lid)™ Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS (formery Lodestone Management
Consultants SAS) ™ France
Infosys Consulling s rodlormery Lodesions Managemenl Crech
Consuliants s.ra) ™ Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH & Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd. = China

Infy Consuling Company Ld  (formery  Lodestone
Management Consultants Lid.j ™ UK

Infy Consuling BV, (formerly Lodeslone Management
Consultants BV ™ Metherlands
Infosys Consulting Ltda (formery Lodestone Management
Consultants Lida ) "™ Brazil
infosys Consultng  Sp. Zoo  (formery  Lodestone
Management Consultanis Sp, z.o.o. ™ Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal,

Lda ™ Partugal
S.C. Infosys Consuling S R.L.(formery 5C. Lodestone
Management Consultants 5 RL )™ Romania
Infosys Consulting 5.R.L. (formerly Lodestone Managemeni

Consultants S RL) ™ Argentina
Infosys Canada Public Services Lid. " Canada
Infosys Nova Holdings LLG {Infosys Nova) ™ us.
Fanaya Inc (Panaya)™ us,
Panaya Ltd """ lsrael
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Panaya Gmbh ©" Germany 100% 100%
Panaya Pty Ltd "' Australia = &
Panaya Japan Co. Lid ™ Japan 100% 100%
Skava Systems Pyt Lid (Skava Systems)"'” India 100% -
Kalldus Inc.{Kallidus)"™ s 100% -
Moah Consulting LLC (Noah)™ us 100% i
MNoah Information Management Consulting Inc  (Noah

Canada)’™ Canada 100% -

U Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys BPO.

' Under liquidation

A Wholly owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formedy Lodestone Holding AG)

* Majority owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formery Lodestone Holding
AG)

= Whaolly owned subsidiary of Portland Group Pty Lig. Liguidated effective May 14, 2014

' Wholly owned subsidiary of Infasys Consulting AG (formeny Lodestone Management Consultants AG)

™ Incorporated effective February 14, 2014. (Refer nole 2.3)

B Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc. Incorporaled effective December 19, 2014

® Incorporated effective January 23, 2015

%O March 5, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voling inferest in Panaya inc. (Refer note 2.3)

1 Wholly owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc,

“H0n June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the vofing inferest in Skava Syslems (Refer nofe 2.3

N om June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the voling inferest in Kallidus Inc. (Refer note 2.3)

Moy November 16, 2015, Infosys acquired 100% of the membership interest in Noah (Refer note 2.3)

“F wholly owned subsidiary of Noah (Refer note 2.3)

"% incorporated effective November 20, 2015

"7 iqwdated effective March 15, 2016

During the year ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, Infosys Poland Sp.Z.0.0 paid a dividend of $4 milion each,
respectively, to its holding company, Infosys BPO and the tax on such dividend received was $1 million each.

During the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, Lodestone Managemeni Consuliants AS paid a
dividend of 32 million, $1 million and $8 million, respectively, to its holding company, Lodestone Hobding AG

and the tax on such dividend received was Nil,

Infosys has provided guarantee for perfformance of certain contracts entered into by its subsidianes.
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List of assoclates:
Particulars Country Holding as of
Mareh 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
DWA Nova LLC (DWA Nova) " us 16% 20%

W Aszociate of Infosys Nova. During the year ended March 31, 2015, Infosys Nova acquired 20% of the
equity ifferests in DWA Nova LLC for a cash consideration of 315 mithon. The Company has made this
mvesiment to form a new company along with Drearmn Works Ammation (DWA). The new company, DWA
Nowva LLC, will dewelop and commercialize image generation technology in order lo provide end-lo-end
digital manufaciuning capabilites for companies involved in the design, manufacturing, markefing or
disiribution of physical consumer products. As of March 31, 2016, Infosys Nova holds 16% of the equity
interest in DWA Nova LLC.

Transaction to acquire associate's stake:
{Dodllars in millions)
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2015

Financing transactlons
Imvestment in DWA Nova 15
15

List of other related parties:

Particulars Country Nature of relationship

Infosys Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys
Infosys Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys

Infosys Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund
Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys.

Trust Indiz

Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys
Trust India BPC

Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys
Trust India BPO

EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund Post-employment benefit plan af
Trust India EdgeVerve

EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees|india Post-employment benefit plan of
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Superannuation Fund Trust EdgeVerve

Infosys Limited Employess’ Welfare Trust India Controdled Trust
Infosys Employee Welfare Trust India Controlled Trust
Infosys Science Foundation India Controlled Trust

Refer to Note 2.11 for information on transachons relating 1o the post-employment benefit plans mentioned
above.

Transactions with key management personnel
The table below describes the compensation to key management personnel which comprises directors and

executive officers;

{Dedlars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2016 2018 2014
Salanes and other employee benefits o whole-lime
directors and executive officers’" ¥ 4 15 5 10
Commission and other bensfits to  non-executive |
independent directors 2 2z 2
Total 17 7 12

U ingludes employee stock compensation expense of $1 million and less than 51 mithon for the year ended
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively to CEQ in line with the compensation plan approved by
the shareholders

' Includes payables to CFO who sfapped down w.e.f October 12, 2015,

' Includes payment of variable pay amounting fo $2.1 millkon for the year ended March 31, 2015 fo CEQ as
decided by the Nomination and Remuneration commiftee on June 22, 2015 in line with the compensaltion
plan approved by the shareholders.

# Ineludes provision for varable pay amounting to 54.33 milion for the year ended March 31, 2016 ta CEO.
The shareholders in the EGM dated July 30, 2014 had approved a vanable pay of 3418 milion al a target

level and also aufhonized the Board fo alfer and vary the ferms of remunerafion. Accordingly, the Board
based on the recommendafions of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiffee approved on April 15,

2016, $4.33 milhon as vanable pay for the year ended March 31, 2016

2.19 Segment reporting
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IFRS 8 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers, The
Company's operations predominantly redate to providing end-io-end business solutions to enable clients 1o
enhance business performance. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company reorganized some of
its segments to enhance executive customer relationships, improve focus of sales investiments and increase
management oversight. Consequent to the mternal reorganization, Growth Markets (GMU) comprising
enterprises in APAC (Asia Pacific) and Africa have been subsumed across the other vericals and businesses
in India, Japan and China are run as standalone regicnal business units and Infosys Public services (IP5) s
reviewed separately by the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Further, the erstwhile manufactunng
segment i now being reviewed as Hi-Tech, Manufacturing and others included in ECS. Consequent to the
intemnal reorganizations, there were changes effected in the reportable business segments based on the
"managemeni approach” as defined in IFRS &, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of vanous performance indicators by business
segments and geographic segments, Accordingly, information has been presented both along business
segments and geographic segments. The accoumting principles used i the preparation of the financial
slatements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in mdividual segmenis, and are as set
oul in the signiicant accounting policies.

Business segments of the Company are primarily enterprises in Financial Services (FS), enterprises in
Manufacturing (MFG), enterprises in Relall, Consumer packaged goods and Logestics (RCL), enlerprises in
the Energy & utilities, Commuricaton and Serdces (ECS), enterprises in Hi-Tech (Hi-Tech), enterprises in
Life Sciences, Healthcare and Inswrance (HILIFE) and all other segments. The FS reportable segments has
been aggregated to include the Financial Services operating segment and the Finacke operating segment
because of the simiarty of the economic characlensties. All other segments represents the operating
segments of businesses in India, Japan and Chena and IPS. Geographic segmeniation is based on business
sourced from that geographic region and delivered from both on-site and off-shore locations. Morth America
comprses the United States of America, Canada and Mexico, Europe includes continental Eurcpe (both the
east and the west), Ireland and the United Kingdom, and the Rest of the World comprsing all other places
excepl those mentioned above and India. Consequent 1o the above changes in the composition of reportable
business segments, the prior pericd comparatives have been restated.

Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to segments are calegonzed based on iems that are
individually wentifiable to that segment, Revenue for "all other segments’ represents revenue generated by
IPS and revenue generated from customers located in India, Japan and China. Allocated expenses of
segments include expenses incurred for rendening services from the Company's offshore software
development centers and on-site expenses, which are categorized in relation 1o the assocated tumaver of the
segment. Certain expenses such as depreciation, which form a significant component of total expenses, are
not specifically allocable fo specific segments as the underlying assets are used interchangeably.
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Management believes that it is not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and

expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separately disclosed as "unallocated” and adjusted against

the total income of the Company

Assets and liabilities used in the Company's business are not identified 1o any of the reportable segments, as

these are used interchangeably between segments. Management believes that it i curently not practicable to
provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the

available data is onefous.

Geugrmrnml information on revenue and business segment Pevenue information s collated based on

individual customers invoiced or in relation to which the revenue is otherwise recognized.

2191 Business segments

{Dallars in milkons)

Year ended March 31, 2016 F$ MFG ECS RCL HILIFE Hi-Tech All other Total
segments
Bevenues 2580 1,047 2081 1556 1.2 756 260 9,501
Identifiable operating expenses 1248 555 044 742 585 3T 156 4,601
Allocated expenses 06 257 506 3Ad 302 185 65 2301
Segment profit 736 235 612 433 344 200 39 259
Unallocable expenses 224
Operating profit 2,376
Ciiher imcome, net 476
Share in associate’s profit / {loss) 2
Profit before income taxes 2,851
Income tax expense e
Net profit 2,052
Depreciation and amortisation 222
Mon-cash  expenses other than
depreciation and amortisation 2
(Dollars in milions)
Year ended March 31, 2015 F§ MFG ECS RCL HILIFE Hi=Tech Aliother  Total
segments
Revenues 2352 1,008 1962 1,449 1.094 BaD 208 BTN
Identifiable operating expenses 1.115 533 895 658 521 313 154 4189
Allocated expenses 541 245 478 353 266 156 50 2 0B
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Segment profit 896 230 589 438

Unallocable expenses

Operating profit

Other income, nel

Share in associate’s profit { (loss)
Profit before Income taxes

Income tax expense

Net profit

Depreciation and amartisation
Mon-cash expenses other than
depreciaton and armortisation

07

17 2 2433

175

2,288

560

B80S

2,013

176

Year ended March 31, 2014 ' FS  MFG

ECS

(Dolars in millicns)

RCL HILIFE Hi-Tech All other

Total
segments

Revenues 2,239 934 1833 1425 1025 585 208 B.249
Identifiable operating expenses 1,046 490 B2 &871 480 279 133 3029
Allocated expenses 547 244 478 arz 26T 153 54 2115
Segment profit 648 191 534 as2 278 183 2 2,205
Unallocable expenses 226
Operating profit 1.97%
Other income, net 440
Share in associale's profil / (loss) -
Profit before Income taxes 2,418
Income tax expense GEd
Met profit 1. 761
Depreciation and amartisation 226
MNon-cash  expenses other  than
depreciation and amortisation h
2.19.2 Geographle segments

(Dofars in millions)
Year ended March 31, 2016 ; Nurlh. EHMFI- In:lh. Rest ﬂfﬂ'l!. Total

America World

Revenues 5,967 2188 248 1,112 9.501
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Identifiable operating expenses 2836 1,060 100 496 4 601
Allocated expenses 1,459 534 5 257 2,301
Segment profit 1,662 592 86 369 2.599
Unallocable expenses 224
Operating profit 2,375
Other income, et 476
Share in associale's profit / (loss) -
Profit before income taxes 2.851
Income tax expense o8
Met profit 2,062
[Depreciation and amortization 222
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation
and amortization 2
{Dollars m millions)
Year ended March 31, 2015 HDI‘H‘I- EHII‘.I[II. ﬁ'ldii. Rest of thl. Total
America Warld
Revenues 5357 2.087 209 1.048 87
Identifiable operating expenses 2558 1,028 115 488 4,189
Alocated expenses 1,303 508 L 234 2,089
Segment profit 1,496 561 50 326 2,433
Unallocable expenses 175
Operating profit 2,258
Other income, net 560
Profit before income taxes 2.818
Income tax expense 805
Met profit 2,013
Depreciation and amortization 175
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation
and amortization -
{Dollars in millions)
Year ended March 31, 2014 MNorth Europe India Rest of the Total
America Werld
Revenues 5,005 2,015 213 1.018 B.249
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Identifiable operating expenses 2,385 990 108 445 3,929
Alocated expenses 1318 512 46 239 2,115
Segment profit 1,302 513 58 33z 2.208
Unallocable expenses 226
Operating profit 1,879
Other income, net 440
Profit before income taxes 2,419
Income tax expense 668
Met profit 1.751
Depreciation and amortization 226
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation

and amortization -

2.19.3 Significant clients

Mo client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues for the year ended March 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014

2.20 Litigation

In 2011, U.5. Department of Homeland Security ("DHS3") reviewed the company's employer eligibility
verfications on Form 1-0 wath respect to its employees working in the United States. In connection with thas
review, the company was advised that the DHS has found erors in a significant percentage of its Forms 1-8.

On October 30, 2013, the company settled the foregoing matters and entered into a Settlement Agreement
{"Settlement Agreement”) with the LS. Atormey, the DHS and the United States Department of State ("State
and collectively with the U S. Attomey and the DHS, the “United States”™).

In the Settlement Agreement, the company dened and disputed all allegations made by the United States,
except for the allegation that the company failed to maintain accurate Forms 1-9 records for many of its foreign
natignals in the United States in 2010 and 2011 as required by law, and that such failure constituted ciil
wiclatons of certain kaws.

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded a charge related to the setflement agreement

{including legal costs) of $35 million related to the matters that were the subject of the Settlement agreement
The said amount was paid prior to December 31, 2013,
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In addition, the company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have ansen in the ordinary course

of busmess. The company’s management does nol reasonably expect that these legal actions, when
ultimaftely concluded and delermined, will have a matlenal and adverse effect on the company’s results of

operations or fimancial condition.

Financial Statement Schedule - Il

{Schedule Il of Reg. §210.5-04ic) of Regulation S-X-17 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Securities Exchange

Act of 1934)

Valuation and qualifying accounts

Provisions for doubtful frade receivables

(Dollars in midlions)

Description Balance at Translation Charged to Write offs Balance at end
beginning of differences cost and of the year

the year EBXpEnses
Fiscal 2016 59 {3) {7 (5) 44
Fiscal 2015 a6 4] 29 2) 59
Fiscal 2014 17 - 23 (4) k1.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Infosys Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2015. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement
schedule 1. These consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule Il are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financia statements and the financial statement schedule Il based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March
31, 2015, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS’). Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule II,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly,

in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), Infosys Limited's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2015,
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based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated May20, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

KPMG
Bangalore, India

May 20, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Infosys Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2016. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we aso have audited financial statement schedule
Il (financial statement schedule). These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financia statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March
31, 2016, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”). Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all

material aspects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States), Infosys Limited's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2016,
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based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated May 18, 2016
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

KPMG
Bangalore, India

May 18, 2016
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